
 

 
 

 
 
         21 December 2016 

 
 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 9 January 2017 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

in the 
Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF 

 
 
TO: Councillor Daniel Clarke (Chairman) 
 Councillor Bruce Tennent (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Janice Asman 
Councillor Louise Bloom Councillor Carol Boulton 
Councillor Cynthia Garton Councillor Jerry Hall 
Councillor Keith House Councillor Rupert Kyrle 
Councillor Angel Myerscough Councillor Derek Pretty 

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Julia Birt, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8437;  
Email: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
RICHARD WARD 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 
other languages, upon request. 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Public Participation     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 8)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2016. 
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
5. Chairman's report    (Verbal Report) 
 
6. Area Manager's Report    (Verbal Report) 
 
7. Various Traffic Regulation Orders    (Pages 9 - 72) 
 
8. Ageas Bowl Review April - September 2016    (Pages 73 - 78) 
 
9. Community Grants 2017/2018    (Pages 79 - 82) 
 
10. Funding for Local Projects    (Pages 83 - 88) 
 
11. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
 

34 Orchards Way, West End - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
planning permission for the erection of a timber outbuilding (Ref: 
F/16/78542). 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 
 
7 Maddoxford Lane, Boorley Green, Botley – Appeal against the Council’s 
refusal of planning permission for the provision of a new roof with increased 
eaves height and front and rear dormers, two storey front extension to 
include excavation works to provide basement. (Ref: F/16/78533.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 
 
Land at Midlands Estate, West End - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
planning permission for the construction of 2no. 3 bed bungalows with 
associated landscaping, car parking, bin and cycle storage. (Ref: 
F/16/78096.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 
 
13 Waters Edge, Hedge End – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 



planning permission for a two storey side extension with integral garage. 
(Ref: F/16/78797.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 
 
South Botley House, West End Road, West End - Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of permission to carry out works to protected trees. (Ref: 
T/16/78081.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision 

 
(b) that the following appeal has been allowed:- 
 

Land to the north west of Boorley Green Winchester Road, Boorley Green – 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of outline planning permission for up to 
680 residential units, mixed use comprising of retail and/or 
community/healthcare use, land for two-form entry primary school, formal 
and informal open space and sports pitches. New access off Winchester 
Road, associated on-site roads, infrastructure and footpaths/cycleways. 
Detailed matters for determination access (all other matters reserved - 
scale, appearance, landscaping and layout). This application is the subject 
of an Environmental Impact Assessment, is a departure from the 
Development Plan, is Major Development and affects the setting of a Right 
of Way. (Ref: 0/15/75953) 
 
This was a Local Area Committee Decision. 

  

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 6 March 2017 at 7:00 pm 

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 7 November 2016  (7:00 pm – 8:55 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Clarke (Chairman); Councillors Tennent, Allingham, Asman, 
Garton, Hall, Kyrle, Myerscough and Pretty 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bloom, Boulton, 
House and Norman 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Nancy Smith, member of Hedge End, West End and Botley Labour Group 
addressed the Committee and spoke with regards to Moorgreen Hospital 
Services. She had previously addressed this Committee on 13 June 2016 
stating that in spring 2015 the West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (WHCCG) had printed a booklet advising that health care would be 
provided in the community. Since then there had been silence. Once again 
Nancy proposed that to resolve the situation and move things forward, 
funding for the centre be provided through Developers’ Contributions, 
NHS, and Eastleigh Borough Council. 
 
The Chairman responded that a representative of the WHCCG had 
recently attended the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel meeting and 
had explained that a bid had been submitted in June 2016 for capital funds 
to invest in the redevelopment of the Moorgreen Hospital site under NHS 
England’s Estates and Technology Transformation Fund. Due to a large 
number of applications, a decision on the funding had been delayed.  The 
Directorate were exploring the development of clinical hubs based in 
Eastleigh town and at Moorgreen Hospital which would further improve 
how local patients could access healthcare. The premises would have the 
scope to provide modern consultation space, with the option to co-locate 
clinics, and extend access to appointments in line with the national 
direction of travel.  
 

2. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2016 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

1

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
 
Boorley Green Working Group 

 
The Chairman had chaired two meetings of this working group. The layout 
of the community building and the design of the sports pavilion roof had 
been discussed. Both of these aspects had then been considered at a 
meeting of Botley Parish’s Full Council. Proposals for a Neighbourhood 
Development Worker were also being developed.  
 
An additional Local Area Committee meeting had been arranged for 
Monday 27 March 2017 to receive the application for the remaining 
dwellings and reserved matters for the Boorley Green development. 
 
Greta Park  
 
The Chairman was pleased to inform the Committee that the new and 
extended play area at Greta Park had been completed. The play area was 
already being well used by youngsters who were enjoying the variety of 
activities and challenges on offer! 
 
Public Inquiries 
 
Following on from the disappointing outcome of the recent public inquiry 
for 100 dwellings off Botley Road, the Chairman thanked the many local 
residents and Councillors who contributed to the Inquiry. 
 
Members should also be aware that the public inquiry for 200 dwellings off 
Bubb Lane would commence on 11 July 2017 at the Ageas Bowl. 
 
Turnpike Way Park and Stride 
 
Following the closure of the Park and Stride site at the former Budgens’ 
car park, Hedge End Town Council had agreed that the car park at the 
Turnpike Way recreation ground could be used as a new Park and Stride 
site. This would be officially launched once discussions were completed 
with the Head teachers of Wildern and Shamblehurst Schools. 
 
The B&Q site off Charles Watts Way was also a Park and Stride site for 
these schools. 
 

2



3 
 

Townhill Farm District Centre 
 
Extensive repairs to the District Centre had now been completed by the 
management company, Park Lane Block Management. These repairs 
included improvements to the car park, cladding, guttering and fencing. 
The surrounds, including hedges and borders, had been landscaped 
giving a much improved appearance. 
 
Ageas Bowl Liaison Panel 
 
Finally as a quick reminder, the annual meeting of the Panel would be held 
Thursday 10 November at the Ageas Bowl.  
 

5. AREA MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
Traffic Regulation Orders 
 
The consultation for the proposed traffic regulation orders in Hedge End, 
West End and Botley had commenced. Residents who wished to comment 
either to object, or support the proposals, were asked to use the link on the 
Council’s website: https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/parking,-travel-
roads/traffic-orders/traffic-orders.aspx 

The traffic team would then assess the comments and make final 
recommendations on the proposals. 
 
Responses to Councillors’ requests 
 
Brunel Close, Hedge End - a fence and rail near to the watercourse in 
Brunel Close were damaged beyond repair. This section of fencing had 
now been completely repaired. 
 
Creedy Gardens - residents requested that the planters outside their 
properties were removed as they had been damaged. The Committee 
financed this work and a small open space had now been created which 
would be maintained by Direct Services. 
  
Swincombe Rise - a scheme was being designed to deflect water away 
from the backs of several properties after heavy flooding and it was hoped 
that works would be undertaken in the near future. 
 
HEWEB Business Community Group 
 
The latest meeting was well attended by representatives of local 
businesses. The Council’s Chief Executive, Nick Tustian gave a 
presentation on devolution. A question and answer session followed his 
presentation and Nick also updated the Group on the Council’s progress 
with the Local Plan. 
 

3

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/parking,-travel-roads/traffic-orders/traffic-orders.aspx
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/parking,-travel-roads/traffic-orders/traffic-orders.aspx


4 
 

Youth Grants  

 
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee had continued its 
support for local organisations involved with services for young people. It 
had allocated £4,000 towards the annual youth grants which last year 
were awarded to 12 groups including scouts, rangers, explorers and young 
carers. For more information about how to apply for this year’s grants, 
please email: donna.love@hedgeend-tc.gov.uk. 
 
Parksport 2016 
 
This Committee contributed £2,000 towards the Council’s Parksport 
summer activities scheme for 8-16 year olds. The skate jam at 
Woodhouse Lane proved to be extremely popular once again with 130 
young people in attendance. Friday Night Football attendances were at a 
record high with an average of 52 people attending per session.  
 
Activities ranging from cricket, volleyball, basketball, dance, boxercise, 
tennis, handball, football and netball were held at Botley Recreation 
Ground, Moorgreen Recreation Ground, The D@rt Centre, Ageas Bowl, 
Woodhouse Lane, and Greta Park. 
 

6. DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH CYCLEWAY AT PAVILION ROAD, 
HEDGE END, AND DEDICATION OF NEW ROUTE 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Transportation and 
Engineering (Agenda item 7) regarding this Committee’s decision to grant 
planning permission, subject to Section 106 conditions, on land crossed by 
an unnumbered, presumed dedicated public right of way. A Public Path 
Diversion Order was required to formally close the existing, presumed 
dedicated, footpath cycleway and direct along a newly created alignment. 
 
RESOLVED -  
 
That authorisation be given for the processing of an Order under 
Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the 
diversion of a public footpath cycleway off Pavilion Road, Hedge 
End, to a new alternative footpath cycleway route as necessary, to 
facilitate the construction of development that this Committee had 
resolved to grant planning permission for. 
 

7. FEES AND CHARGES 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager in 
consultation with the Parking Services Manager (Agenda item 8). 
 
Fees and Charges for Council services were reviewed on a regular basis.  
In accordance with the budget strategy approved by the Cabinet in 
October, fees and charges levied by the Council were being reviewed with 
the intention of increases being introduced with effect from January 2017 

4

mailto:donna.love@hedgeend-tc.gov.uk


5 
 

where possible.  Following a Cabinet decision in September 2012 a 
number of fees and charges were now set by Local Area Committees and 
these were the subject of this report.    
 
RESOLVED -  
 
(1) That an increase of 30p to the parking tariffs for Hedge End 

Station Car Park and Stroudley Way commencing from 6 
February 2017 be approved, and that the Hedge End Station 
Car Park tariffs be fixed for two years; and  

 
(2) That the Fees and Charges for Itchen Valley Country Park to 

come into effect on the 1 January 2017 and 6 February 2017 be 
approved as outlined in the report. 

 
8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME PRIORITIES IN HEDGE 

END, WEST END AND BOTLEY 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager in 
consultation with the Clerks to Hedge End Town Council, West End Parish 
Council and Botley Parish Council (Agenda item 9) 

The Community Investment Programme (CIP) priorities for Hedge End, 
West End and Botley (HEWEB) had been reviewed in consultation with 
local stakeholders. Members were invited to endorse these local area 
priorities for the period of 2016 – 21.  
 
Members were reminded that although the priorities had been assigned for 
their geographical locations in Hedge End, West End and Botley, some of 
them had a strategic importance for the whole HEWEB area, for example 
Wildern School and the Ageas Bowl. 
 
RESOLVED -  
 
(1) That the Community Investment Programme (CIP) priorities for 

the Hedge End, West End and Botley areas be noted; and  
 
(2) That the revised documents outlining CIP priorities for the 

period 2016 -21 as shown in Appendix 1 to the report be 
approved. 

 
9. FUNDING FOR LOCAL PROJECTS 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager in 
consultation with the Construction Manager, the Tree Officer and the Clerk 
to Hedge End Town Council (Agenda item 10). 

The recommended funding would support projects which would meet 
identified local needs. The projects would also contribute to the 
achievement of corporate priorities. 

5



6 
 

 
RESOLVED -   

(1) That expenditure of £21,968.58 from Developers’ Contributions 
to complete the footpath links from Charterhouse Way to 
Mescott Meadows be approved; 

 
(2) That the allocation of the Developers’ Contributions of 

£2,312.29 for the public art project in Shafford Meadows be 
approved; 

 
(3) That the Chairman’s approval for dropped kerbs in Prestwood 

Road at a cost of £2,500 from the Committee’s reserves be 
noted; 

 
(4) That the Chairman’s approval for additional works to Botleigh 

Bridge of  £1,583.41 be noted; and 
 

(5) That the Chairman’s approval of £1,000 as match funding 
towards new equipment for the local speedwatch scheme be 
noted. 

10. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework. 
 

11. PLANNING APPLICATION - 67-71 HIGH STREET, WEST END 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 12) concerning an application for the change 
of use of part of rear garden of no. 9 Severn Way to provide parking for 
existing car dealership and erection of single storey extension to workshop 
building to provide an additional service bay at 67-71 High Street, West 
End. 
 
The Committee was advised that two further representations had been 
received but no new issues had been raised. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the application be REFUSED for the reasons set out in the 
report. 
 
(NOTE:  One member of the public spoke on behalf of residents in 
objection to the application, citing a number of concerns including drainage 
issues, encroachment, noise, lighting, air pollution and parking; and the 
applicant and agent spoke in support.) 

6

tel:1583.41


7 
 

 
12. PLANNING APPLICATION - SHAFFORD MEADOWS, HEDGE END 

 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 13) concerning an application for non-material 
amendment: partial substitution of approved layout drawing as referenced 
in conditions 1 and 14 to allow for changes to approved parking 
arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That permission to grant a non-material amendment be REFUSED on 
the grounds that it was considered that the proposal represented a 
material change to the original planning application. 
 
(NOTE: Four members of the public spoke with regards to the current and 
proposed parking arrangements at this location.) 
 

13. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reported:- 
 
(a) That the following appeal had been lodged:- 
 

16 Ullswater Avenue, West End, Southampton - Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of planning permission for the change of use from 
open amenity land to domestic curtilage (Ref: F/16/78552.) 

 
 This was a Delegated Decision. 
 
(b) That the following appeal had been allowed:- 
 

Land off Botley Road, West End – Appeal against the Council’s 
refusal of planning permission for a development of up to 100 
dwellings (including up to 35% affordable housing), structural 
planting and landscaping, informal public open space, surface water 
attenuation and vehicular access from Botley Road, and associated 
ancillary works (Ref: O/15/76418.). 

 
(c) That the following appeals had been dismissed:- 
 

5 to 9 Shamblehurst Lane South, Hedge End - Appeal against the 
Council’s refusal of planning permission to grant consent for the 
felling of four sycamore trees protected by a Tree Preservation 
Order (Ref: T/16/77827.) 
 
This was a Delegated Decision. 
  
7 Maddoxford Lane, Botley - Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
planning permission re-development of existing chalet bungalow, 
new roof to same of ridge height, new front extension for a double 

7



8 
 

garage/secure basement storage and first floor living 
accommodation, new permeable driveway and landscaping to 
improve site access and parking (Ref: F/16/77816.)  
 

This was a Delegated Decision. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
M5580 
 
 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 9 January 2017 

VARIOUS ON STREET PARKING RESTRICTIONS 

Report of the Head of Transportation and Engineering 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that: 
 
(1) Restrictions in Church Lane should be implemented in accordance with the 

advertised TRO, as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/004(3). 
 

(2) Restrictions in Cobbett Way / Brook Lane be implemented in accordance with 
the advertised TRO, as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/007 
 

(3) Restrictions in Cudworth Mead be implemented in accordance with the 
advertised TRO as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/005 and that the 
location be monitored following implementation.  
 

(4) Restrictions in Garratt Close should be implemented in accordance with the 
advertised TRO, as shown in drawing no. TM01/01699/003. 

(5) Restrictions in Hobb Lane/Lower Northam Road should be implemented in 
accordance with the advertised TRO, as shown in drawing nos. 
TM01/01699/008/1 and TM01/01699/008/2.  

(6) Restrictions in Lower Northam Road should be implemented in accordance 
with the advertised TRO, as shown in drawing no. TM01/01699/012. 

(7) In light of objections received, restrictions in St Johns Road should be  
implemented as shown on the amended drawing no. TM01/01699/009A.   

(8) That the decision on the implementation of waiting restrictions in Turnpike 
Way be deferred until the outcome of the parking review is known. 

(9) Restrictions in Upper St Helen’s Road / Lyons Place should be implemented 
in accordance with the advertised TRO, as shown in drawing no. 
TM01/01699/006 and the situation should continue to be monitored to assess 
the impact and whether additional restrictions are required in the future.  

(10) In light of objections received, restrictions in West Road should be 
implemented as shown on the amended drawing no. TM01/01699/002A. 
 

(11) Restrictions in Whites Way should be implemented in accordance with the 
advertised TRO as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/011  

(12) In light of objections, restrictions in Winchester Street should be 

9

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

implemented as shown on the amended drawing no. TM01/01699/001A.  

 

Summary 
 
New, and amendments to existing waiting restrictions have been proposed in various 
locations across the Hedge End, West End and Botley area.  During the advertisement of 
the proposed Traffic Regulation Order. Objections were received to proposals in some 
locations. This report summarises the responses received and recommends how to 
proceed with the proposals. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 42 Highways Act 1980; Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between 
Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council by virtue of Section 19 of 
the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangements and 
Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2000 and by virtue of Section 1 of the 
Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970; Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; 
Traffic Management Act 2004. 

 
Introduction 

1. Various roads have been investigated in response to reported and/or known 
parking problems. A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for parking restrictions 
has been progressed as prioritised by the Hedge End, West End and Botley 
Local Area Committee. 

2. The following roads were included in the TRO for investigation:- 

 Brook Lane/Cobbett Way 

 Church Lane 

 Garratt Close 

 Hobb Lane 

 Lower Northam Road 

 St John’s Road 

 Turnpike Way 

 Upper St Helen’s Road / 
Lyons Place 

 West Road 

 Whites Way 

 Winchester Street 

3. Site visits were carried out to determine whether restrictions would be 
beneficial for road users. For those roads where new restrictions or changes 
to existing restrictions were recommended, initial consultation was 
undertaken with the statutory consultees, which includes the emergency 
services, locally elected Members, Hampshire County Council (HCC) and 
public transport operators - no objections to the proposals were received. 

4. The proposed TRO was subsequently advertised for public comment, during 
which a number of the proposals received objections, and support. 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

5. This report lists the roads that have been included within the TRO, and 
details the objections, comments and support received during the public 
consultation period. It also makes recommendations as to any changes that 
could be considered. 

6. This Committee needs to address the comments received, before making a 
decision on the implementation, or otherwise, of the Traffic Regulation 
Order.  

Consultation 

7. The formal consultation was advertised in the local newspaper, on the 
Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website, the HCC Public Notices Portal 
and on public notices placed throughout affected areas. 

8. Officers received comments regarding the proposals from 79 correspondents 
regarding the following roads:  

Brook Lane/Cobbett Way St John’s Road 

Church Lane Turnpike Way 

Cudworth Mead Upper St Helen’s Road/ 
Lyons Place 

Hobb Lane / Lower Northam Road West Road 

Garratt Close Winchester Street 

 

9. A breakdown of responses will be provided on a road by road basis and a 
more detailed copy of the comments received is shown in Appendix A. 

Brook Lane/Cobbett Way, Botley 

Statement of Reasons: 

10. In Brook Lane and Cobbett Way ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions are 
proposed to reduce congestion and to improve road safety at the junction an 
in Cobbett Way. Vehicles are regularly parked in Cobbett Way up to the 
Brook Lane junction.  

Summary of Comments: 

11. One expression of support was received to this proposal but pointed out that 
the proposals will increase pressure on parking unless the local garage 
allowed staff to park on site. 

12. One objection was received stating the following reasons: 

 The proposal will exacerbate an already ‘unliveable’ situation. There 
are two blocks of flats that have no allocated parking resulting in the 
necessity for residents to park on the road. 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

 Employees of the local garage use Cobbett Way for parking causing a 
major issue for residents, reducing the parking space would likely 
cause problems with parking on the verges and parking in front of the 
residential properties which only rarely happens at present. 

 Suggests that a residents parking scheme should be implemented, 
which would resolve the issue of non-residents using the street. This 
would improve congestion far more than the scheme proposed. 

Response to comments: 

13. The support for the restriction is noted.  

14. Residents parking schemes are normally introduced across large areas to 
avoid moving problems and to ensure that there are sufficient spaces to 
satisfy demand and make them more equitable. The implementation of a 
residents parking scheme is very costly and policy states that that all residents 
parking schemes should be self-financing and therefore the capital costs and 
on-going revenue costs to operate the scheme must be funded from penalty 
charge income and the cost of permits. In this location, the majority of costs 
would fall on residents themselves in the cost of permits which may be met 
with some objection. 

15. The limited objection to this proposal suggests that the majority of residents 
are in favour. 

Recommendation: 

16. Restrictions in Cobbett Way/Brook Lane be implemented in accordance with 
the advertised TRO, as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/007. 

Church Lane, Hedge End 

 Statement of Reasons: 

To implement ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restrictions to reduce congestion and 
obstructions caused by parked vehicles in this narrow road. 
 

 Summary of Comments: 

17. One comment received regarding St John’s Road also mentioned the 
restrictions in Church Lane.  It stated that ‘the claim that Church Lane is 
obstructed by parked cars is exaggerated and untrue. However the ability of 
Church Lane to remain clear is probably dependent upon St Johns Road not 
being subjected to a change in the current restrictions.’ 

Response to Comments: 

18. Local Councillors have received complaints from local residents regarding 
obstructions to their access in Church Lane, caused by parked vehicles 
opposite their driveways.  The proposed restrictions in Church Lane will 
alleviate this issue.  No other objections were received from any residents in 
Church Lane itself.   

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

Recommendation: 

19. Restrictions in Church Lane should be implemented in accordance with the 
advertised TRO, as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/004(3) 

Cudworth Mead, Hedge End 

Statement of Reasons: 

Cudworth Mead is a residential cul-de-sac situated close to Berrywood 
Primary School. It suffers some ‘school-run’ parking, therefore, restricted 
parking between 8am-9am and 2.30pm-3.30pm (Monday–Friday) is 
proposed. 

Summary of Comments: 

20. Five representations have been received, four in support of the proposals 
and one objection.  The comments stated are as follows:- 

 The four expressions of support for the proposals also stated that they 
would have liked to have seen the restrictions being applied to the 
either the whole road or on both sides of the road and a request was 
received for further monitoring should the restrictions be implemented. 

 The objector felt that the restrictions will merely move the problem 
further along the road and felt that congestion at these times should 
be expected when you live next to a school. It was suggested that a 
parking attendant could visit and move on people parking 
inconsiderately. 

Response to comments: 

21. It is accepted that vehicles will likely move further along the road during the 
restricted hours, however, the current proposals ensure that the bend is kept 
clear of parked vehicles which will improve congestion and access to 
properties in this location. White ‘bar markings’ will be provided for 80 and 81 
Cudworth Mead as part of the proposals to ease access. The situation 
should continue to be monitored, as requested by residents. 

Recommendation: 
 

22. Restrictions in Cudworth Mead be implemented in accordance with the 
advertised TRO as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/005 and that the 
location be monitored following implementation.  

 
Garratt Close 

23. One representation has been received supporting the proposal. 

Recommendation: 

24. Restrictions in Garratt Close should be implemented in accordance with the 
advertised TRO, as shown in drawing no. TM01/01699/003. 

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

Hobb Lane/Lower Northam Road, Hedge End  

Statement of Reasons: 

25. To implement a ‘Prohibition of Waiting, Monday-Friday, 8am -9am and 
2.30pm-3.30pm’ restriction in the vicinity of the school crossing patrol to 
improve safety at school drop off times. Also, to extend the ‘No Waiting At Any 
Time’ restriction to alleviate parking on the bend south of Mappleton Road and 
to implement a ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restriction at the junction with Lower 
Northam Road to improve safety and reduce congestion. 

Summary of Comments 

26. Ten comments were received regarding this location. Three expressions of 
support were received and seven representations either objecting or 
commenting. 

27. The reasons for objection were as follows:- 

 Unacceptable to restrict parking at school times. 

 There are no drop off facilities at the school or Park and Stride 
arrangements, therefore parents, particularly those outside the 
catchment area, have to park on the road.  

 Parking will be moved to other nearby roads. 

 Speed of traffic will increase and there will be an increase risk to the 
children. 

 Proposed waiting restrictions at the junction with Lower Northam Road 
extend too far and should only go to the dropped kerb to ‘Copper 
Beeches’ 

Response to Comments: 

28. The support for the restrictions is noted. 

29. The proposed waiting restrictions are required to increase road safety.  
Vehicles currently park close to and on the bend south of Mappleton Road 
which is considered a hazard. 

30. The restriction during school hours is located on the approach to the School 
Crossing Patrol (SCP). Currently, parked vehicles obscure oncoming traffic 
and are travelling on the wrong side of the road when approaching the SCP 
site. The removal of these parked cars at school times will create an 
unobstructed zone on the approach to the SCP site allowing better visibility 
for both drivers and pedestrians and the SCP Officer. 

31. It is accepted that some displacement of parking will occur. 

32. It is unlikely that there will be a significant increase in vehicle speeds given 
the location and length of the proposed restrictions. 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

33. The objection relating to the Hobb Lane/Lower Northam Road junction 
requested a reduction in the length to the dropped kerb to Copper Beeches. 
However, this proposal was intended to improve visibility when exiting 
Patricia Drive and therefore the reduction as requested would not achieve 
this. 

Recommendation: 

34. Restrictions in Hobb Lane/Lower Northam Road should be implemented in 
accordance with the advertised TRO, as shown in drawing nos. 
TM01/01699/008/1 and TM01/01699/008/2.  

Lower Northam Road 

Statement of Reasons 

35. Due to a proposed highway improvement scheme in Lower Northam Road 
Service Road, the existing waiting restrictions need to be amended to reflect 
the proposed changes as shown on plan HC01509/004.  This includes a 
change to the limited waiting in the Service Road on the north side between 
Wildern Lane and Cedar Close and the relocation of the disabled parking 
place in the Service Road on the South side. 

36. This is in addition to the proposal to implement a ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ 
restriction at the junction with Hobb Lane (see also Hobb Lane proposal 
above (Paragraphs 25-34)). 

Summary of Comments 

37. One comment was received regarding restrictions in Lower Northam Road 
although these did not seem to refer to the proposals advertised and 
requested that bollards be considered where restrictions are proposed to 
stop parking on verges and footways. 

Recommendation: 

38. Restrictions in Lower Northam Road should be implemented in accordance 
with the advertised TRO, as shown in drawing no. TM01/01699/012. 

St John’s Road/Church Lane 

Statement of Reasons: 

39. Vehicles are regularly parking along St John’s Road causing congestion and 
reducing visibility at junctions. The congestion causes considerable frustration 
to drivers. 

Summary of Comments: 

40. Eleven representations were received to this proposal, four expressions of 
support and seven objections. 

41. The objections stated the following reasons for opposition:- 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

 Impact on the ability to park outside property and impact on visitors 
being able to park in the vicinity of property 

 Loss of parking for customers to businesses. May affect turnover and 
loss of revenue. 

 Suggests alternative restrictions such as limited waiting or timed 
restrictions to allow some parking but stop long term parking.  
Currently there is a white bar marking across the dropped kerb to 
properties and therefore any parking here requires the permission of 
the property owners and is generally only short term, as currently 
used by customers. 

 Problems lay with the restricted parking at the paddling pool in the 
summer months 

 Removal of parked vehicles will remove the natural traffic calming 
effect and will increase vehicle speeds 

 Knock on effect of displaced parking in other side roads, causing 
access problems for those residents. Visibility at The Chapel Drove/St 
Johns Road junction is not an issue. 

Response to Comments: 

42. The support for the proposal is noted.  

43. The comments received regarding the effect on businesses is noted and 
therefore it is proposed that the length of the waiting restrictions is reduced 
so that the length of the dropped kerb, currently protected by a white bar 
marking is not included in this proposal. 

44. The length of the double yellow lines proposed is unlikely to have a 
significant effect on vehicle speeds. 

45. The implementation of waiting restrictions will cause some displacement of 
parked vehicles however the proposed restrictions will create passing places 
for vehicles which should result in reduced congestion and frustration for 
drivers. 

46. The Chapel Drove/St Johns Road junction currently has some parking 
restrictions, but would benefit from an increased length to improve visibility of 
oncoming vehicles. 

Recommendation: 

47. In light of objections received, restrictions in St Johns Road should be 
implemented as shown on the amended drawing no. TM01/01699/009A.   

Turnpike Way, Hedge End 

Statement of Reasons: 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

48. The proposal in this location is to extend the ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ 
restrictions west of Shafford Meadows to improve road safety by restricting 
parking on the bends. 

Summary of comments: 

49. There have been six representations received regarding this location. 

50. One respondent stated that whilst they supported waiting restrictions in this 
location they were concerned about the increase to vehicle speeds.  
Currently the parked vehicles serve to slow vehicles in this location. The 
road is heavily used by school children and therefore there was a suggestion 
that traffic calming should be applied. 

51. Five objections were received from residents of Shafford Meadows and the 
following reasons were stated:- 

 Restricting parking in this location will have a massive impact on the 
residents of Shafford Meadows.  This development has limited visitor 
parking available and Turnpike Way is the closest available location. 
Residents have to comply with covenants regarding parking of 
vehicles and imposing this restriction will mean that residents may not 
be able to comply with their covenants. 

 Due to the limited parking in the development, the availability of parking 
in Turnpike Way was a key factor in purchasing the property 

 Traffic speeds will increase. The road is relatively wide and there are 
other locations in the Borough, where the roads are narrower and the 
bends sharper, that do not have restrictions. 

 Suggestion that the Council could ‘rent’ a key to residents so that The 
Turnpike Way car park could be utilised. 

Response to Comments: 

52. The support for the restrictions is noted. 

53. There is an ongoing parking review being undertaken by the planning 
department for Shafford Meadows. The developer Linden Homes introduced 
a private management scheme for the parking and it has raised a few 
issues. This has been an on-going situation for the last 2+ years since the 
estate was built. The Senior Planning Officer brought a report to the last 
HEWEB LAC outlining some permit changes and variations on car park 
layouts. However this was rejected by members. Therefore, the review is still 
ongoing. 

Recommendation  

54. That the decision on the implementation of waiting restrictions in Turnpike 
Way be deferred until the outcome of the parking review is known. 

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

Upper St Helen’s Road/Lyons Place, Hedge End  

Statement of Reasons:  

55. To implement ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restrictions to improve road safety by 
reducing congestion and obstructions caused by parked vehicles.  Upper St 
Helen’s Road is a bus route where at times the buses have been unable to 
proceed due to the presence of parked vehicles. 

Summary of Comments: 

56. Twelve representations were received relating to this location. Five 
expressed support for the proposals and seven objected. 

57. Of the five supporting comments one requested that the road be monitored 
to assess whether the problem is moved to other locations in the road. 
Others, whilst they supported the proposals suggested that the lines should 
be extended along the entire road. 

58. The four objections stated the following reasons:- 

 There is no suggestion of how to deal with the displacement of 
vehicles. Suggestion to pave the grass verges to allow 2 wheels to 
park on the verges as has been done in other areas. Another 
suggestion is to make the grass verges into residents parking bays. 

 Double yellow lines should be applied to the whole of Upper St Helens 
Road as drivers will merely park further down the road.  There are 
already issues of obstructions near to the Stockholm Drive junction. 

 Impact on visitor parking and workmen visiting properties. 

 The proposed lines are longer that the standard 10m. The extension to 
the lines is not necessary and will only move vehicles to another part 
of the road. Suggestion for residents only parking. 

 Suggestion that the entire road should be no waiting 6am-6pm 
Monday-Friday which would stop the builders vans and cars causing 
this problem and make parking for residents only. 

Response to Comments: 

59. The support for the restriction is noted.  

60. Reports have been received from the bus companies regarding obstructions 
caused by parked vehicles. The proposals will reduce the incidence of 
obstructions.  

61. Many residents have expressed the need for restrictions along the whole 
length of the road.  It is suggested that restrictions are implemented as 
advertised and the location be monitored to assess the effects and whether 
further restrictions are required in the future.   

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

62. The conversion of grass verges to parking areas is costly and there is no 
funding available to pursue this option. 

63. Other restrictions, such as residents parking are not appropriate as this will 
not resolve the issue of obstructions to the bus services. Timed restrictions 
could be implemented, however, single yellow lines tend to need more 
targeted enforcement than double yellow lines. 

Recommendation: 

Restrictions in Upper St Helen’s Road / Lyons Place should be implemented 
in accordance with the advertised TRO, as shown in drawing no. 
TM01/01699/006 and the situation should continue to be monitored to assess 
the impact and whether additional restrictions are required in the future.  

West Road 

Statement of reasons: 

64. This restriction has been proposed following complaints about parking in the 
road and obstructions caused by parked vehicles, particularly for emergency 
services. 

Summary of comments received: 

65. Twenty Eight representations were received regarding this proposal. None in 
support for the proposals, as advertised.  

66. Several residents supported an extension to the restrictions at the junction 
with Upper Northam Road, but objected to the further restrictions.  

67. The Council was requested to force Amazon to comply with their operating 
conditions, not to implement waiting restrictions on residents. 

68. One resident felt that it would move the problem from one side of the road to 
the other. 

69. Another commented that the residents have not asked for these restrictions. 
They would like to see Resident Only parking implemented to deter nearby 
workers using West Road as a car park along with yellow line extensions at 
the entrance of West Road due to limited visibility causing safety concerns. 

70. Parking is needed for visiting family and friends and for carers who regularly 
visit a number of residents. 

Response to comments: 

71. The weight of objection to this proposal is noted and an amended proposal to 
only extend the waiting restrictions at the junction is recommended as shown 
on the plan no. TM01/01699/002A 

Recommendation: 

In light of objections received, restrictions in West Road should be 
implemented as shown on the amended drawing no. TM01/01699/002A 

19



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

Whites Way 

72. No comments were received regarding the proposals in Whites Way. 

Recommendation: 

73. Restrictions in Whites Way should be implemented in accordance with the 
advertised TRO as shown on drawing no. TM01/01699/011. 

Winchester Street, Botley 

Statement of Reasons: 

74. Vehicles are regularly parked in Winchester Street close to the junction with 
Donkey Lane.  As a result of a road traffic accident, an extension to the 
waiting restrictions is proposed to improve visibility from Donkey Lane. 

Summary of comments: 

75. There have been three objections to this proposal.  

76. Parking for the cottages is limited already. This will mean that there will be 
parking for three vehicles from seven cottages. This is unacceptable. 
Residents already struggle to find a parking space. Suggest residents only 
parking which would reduce the likelihood that high sided vehicles would be 
parked here impeding visibility. 

77. Donkey Lane is effectively a private driveway and should be treated as such. 

78. Parking creates natural traffic calming and removal of the parking will 
encourage drivers to speed. 

Response to Comments: 

79. The length of lines proposed is unlikely to cause an increase in vehicle 
speeds. 

80. Although Donkey Lane is un-adopted, the obstruction is caused by vehicles 
parked on the public highway. It serves several houses and its highway 
status should not preclude it from the introduction of road safety measures 
on the public highway if deemed necessary. 

81. The limited parking for the cottages is accepted and therefore it is 
recommended that the length of the lines be reduced as shown on the 
amended plan no. TM01/01699/001A. This will result in the loss of one 
parking space but will make some improvement to the visibility at Donkey 
Lane. 

Recommendation 

82. In light of objections, restrictions in Winchester Street should be 
implemented as shown on the amended drawing no. TM01/01699/001A.  

20



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
   

Financial Implications 

83. The cost of the TRO and associated signs and road markings are funded 
through the Traffic Management Agency budget.  There are no cost 
implications for this Committee. 

84. Any amendments or new proposals which require the Traffic Regulation 
Order to be re-advertised and further consultation to be carried out will incur 
additional costs in terms of staff time and advertisement expenses that were 
not included in the original estimate for the work. Due to time and budget 
limitations such changes would be better addressed through inclusion in a 
future various TRO. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

85. An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out because the 
report does not contain proposals for significant changes to existing 
services, polices or strategies and does not introduce any new services, 
policies or strategies. 

Conclusions 

86. The proposed Traffic Regulation Order to introduce new waiting restrictions 
in Hedge End, West End and Botley received objections. 

87. The Committee needs to decide whether to proceed with the proposals to 
which objections have been received. 

 

ED VOKES 
Head of Transportation & Engineering 

 
Date:  
Contact Officer: Alison Mills 
Tel No: 023 8068 8231 
e-mail: Alison.mills@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Appendix A – Objections/comments received, and 17 

plans 
Report No:  
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None. 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - HEWEB Various Order 2016 - Objections/Comments received during advertisement 
period 

Cobbett 
Way/Brook La 

Supports the plan for reasons of road safety, but would point out that people 
parking there are either employees of sparshatts or residents forced to park there 
because of the number of Sparshatts employees parking in Cobbett Way. The 
proposals will increase the pressure on parking unless Sparshatts permit their staff 
to park on site 

Cobbett 
Way/Brook La 

Unfortunately, I find the suggested plans in place completely baffling as they are 
going to exacerbate an already unliveable situation. Issue 1: There are currently 
two blocks of flats with no allocated parking, meaning that there are many 
residents who are forced to park on the road with no alternative. Issue 2. 
Sparshatts employees currently use this residential  street for parking, causing 
major issues for the residents who need to find parking at the end of their working 
days. Reducing the existing parking space that these employees feel free to use, will 
invoke both these employees and residents to likely park on the grass verge in front 
of the residential housing (Which they currently do, sparingly). Rather than forcing 
the employees to use the rather large and recently extended parking space that 
they have at the back of their garage. Issue 2. Some homeowners park their cars 
sideways to take up two car parking spaces and don’t use their own personal 
drives. This causes more congestion than the proposed fix. In conclusion, I believe 
that a proposed parking permit scheme for  residents  and a ban on parking for 
businesses on this road would solve the matter for all. This would force those with 
driveways to park in their drive, and would also stop Sparshatts using this street. It 
would remove the 10-12 cars parking daily on the road from Sparshatts. This would 
improve congestion far more than the suggested scheme that you have proposed. 
The currently proposed restrictions will mean that none of the residents will be 
able to park on the road in the evenings, and as Cobbett Way is located just off of a 
very narrow country road, there are no alternative parking spaces within walking 
distance. 

Cudworth 
Mead 

Why are we not considering restrictions in the whole road as this will only move the 
problem. If this goes ahead as it is will the Council be monitoring to see if problems 
occur elsewhere in the road 

Cudworth 
Mead 

This will not solve congestion, the problem will move further round the road or to 
roads close by. If you choose to live on a road by a school then it is expected that 
for a small amount of time twice a day the traffic will be busy. It could be resolved if 
a parking attendant visited and stopped the few drivers who park inconsiderately. 

Cudworth 
Mead 

In favour of the restrictions but would like to see it being applied to both sides of 
the road. Cars parked opposite drive makes it difficult to access driveway. The 
proposed restrictions will help access to his driveway with no cars overhanging my 
drive 

23



Cudworth 
Mead 

Problem has got worse and worse every week(resident for over 20 years),road is 
often blocked or partially blocked due to inconsiderate parking, double parking and 
the late brigade who turn up at 8.40 and 3.15 thinking they can park anywhere 
.Only last Friday a Currys delivery couldn't get past my house no2 and had to 
reverse out onto the main road so he could reverse back into Cudworth Mead 
through the children leaving school and then ditch the lorry across my drive while 
he completed his delivery on foot. Lots of cars are doing 3 point turns outside nos 1 
& 2 causing chaos as others come into the road. When the weather is bad it's 
absolutely ridiculous because everybody wants to park as close as possible to the 
school gate. I imagine most of the residents are fed up with the current situation 
and will welcome any restrictions that will make the road a safer more accessible 
place at school times. I hope that the road is policed when the restrictions are 
introduced otherwise it seems to be a pointless exercise.I have been off work for 
the past 7 weeks and didn't realise how bad the parking has become.  

Cudworth 
Mead 

1. We support the idea of traffic restrictions on Cudworth Mead during school drop 
off and pick times. 2. We do not feel that the current proposal goes far enough and 
should be extended to include both sides of the road. a. Cudworth Mead is a curved 
road. When cars are parked either side of a driveway, the cars create a blind spot in 
both directions. With the increased numbers of pedestrians at peak times, this 
presents a significant hazard when trying to exit a driveway. b. Due to the width of 
the road, one row of parked cars still creates a bottle neck for a two way flow of 
traffic on this road. Any larger vehicles will also have difficulty passing to access the 
street. c. There have been occasions when we have been unable to drive out of our 
driveway due to cars parking across the bottom of the driveway. As a minimum 
requirement we request that white lines be painted to mark entrance/exit ways to 
all properties (driveways and private roads) to clearly define where driveways and 
dropped curbs exist. The addition of the white lines would enable Eastleigh 
Borough Council to take enforcement action where required.  

Garratt Close My reasons are that the proposal is in keeping with the safe entry and egress of my 
property as well as taking into consideration the laws of parking within a certain 
distance of a corner. The proposal will not affect other residents in Garratt Close as 
they have no impeded entry/egress to their properties - ie white lines across their 
driveways.  

Hobb Lane Fully supports the proposals 

Hobb Lane Unacceptable to restrict parking access for school times 

Hobb Lane There is no parking for drop/off and pick up or park and stride for either 
Freegrounds Infant or Junior School Where to the Council expect parents to park 
that do not live in the catchment area. The roads will become faster with more cars 
rushing to get children to school or to work themselves due to parking further out. 
the parking is simple shifted to side roads causing further issues. 

Hobb Lane Surely this proposal is just going to push parents dropping off and collecting from 
school to come around to our road at the other side of the school to collect, we 
already have congestion at school times and I feel that residents car parks will start 
to be used and abused by parents. Understands the danger on Hobb Lane but feels 
that we are just diverting the problem to another road. 

24



Hobb Lane My son attends freegrounds infant school and the majority of the time is taken or 
picked up by my wife. She is registered disabled and is unable to walk very far. She 
does have a pass for the school car park but it's very small and often she has to park 
around the corner on Hobb lane. Restricting parking on Hobb lane at school times is 
potentially going to have a big adverse impact on my wife. We also feel that it will 
cause even more congestion and inconsiderate parking in nearby Mapleton road. 
We appreciate that poor parking by some probably causes problems for locals but 
feel this will just shift the problem to a smaller area and cause problems for our 
family. How about a partial restriction on the road so my wife, arriving early enough 
can still park?  

Hobb Lane I feel that there ought to be further parking restrictions, in addition to those 
quoted, around school times as the road becomes very difficult/dangerous to 
navigate. In addition I think children would benefit from walking a bit further than 
they do now to school, the parents may also benefit from the exercise. 

Hobb Lane Concerned that there will be an increase in parking in his road as it is close to the 
school both by walking along Hobb Lane and by cutting through Leburnham Road. 
Not just concerned about the volume of traffic on his road but that road has poor 
visibility on the bends thus making the children crossing an easy target. Parking is 
already bad and cause problems on the first bend as visibility is poor and cars are 
permanently parked in the layby but also protruding into the road too far often, 
emergency vehicles wouldn't get through. The residents of Leburnham house will 
also be at risk as their mobility scooters will not get past the cars who will no doubt 
park half on and off the kerb.  I have children at Freegrounds and my biggest 
concern is the safety of the children. Suggests that the school only admits 
catchment area children thus reducing the need to drive or a park and stride 
scheme utilising the green area part way along Kings Copse Avenue or the grassed 
area off sovereign drive. 

Hobb Lane I am in favour of these restriction at the junction of Hobb Lane, and Lower Northam 
Road. My only concern is that this might encourage people to park in Patricia Drive, 
especially to visitors to the flats Adjacent to 1A Hobb Lane. Would you please place 
the appropriate signs at the junction of Hobb Lane, and Patricia Drive As this 
unadopted road is narrow, any parking might block this road to emergency vehicles, 
and the refuse disposal lorries. 

Hobb Lane We are the managing agent for the block and we have asked by the residents to 
object this order. the residents objections are that the lines will extend to far along 
Hobbs Lane . they feel that they are need to go as far as the drop kerb in Copper 
Beeches.  

25



Hobb Lane The Freegrounds School parents, parking on the road outside my home and my 
neighbour's homes is already at a ridiculous volume. By making the morning and 
afternoon 'no waiting time' restrictions end just before Spring Gardens, in Hobb 
Lane, you will push even more vehicles towards the top of Hobb Lane, where I 
noticed that you will also be putting in 'no waiting at any time' lines. This is a bus 
route, that only the other day, due to very poor parking in the afternoon, resulted 
in the bus having to squeeze (just) through the parked cars, which were on both 
sides of the road. I have photographic evidence of this. Some parents repeatedly 
pull onto driveways to turn their cars around, or park half on the pavement / half 
on the road, which not only obstructs traffic trying to get through, but parents 
trying to walk their children back down the road after school. I sometimes struggle 
to reverse my car onto my driveway or even pull in frontwards due to the bad 
parking and my immediate neighbour cannot always get her car onto or out of her 
drive because of the ridiculous parking. I would ask, please, that you will consider 
doing a weeks’ survey in Hobb Lane during term time, so you can see for yourself 
what is happening. I have no challenges with people parking on the road, per se, 
however, it is the volume of cars that will be parking near here in the future, if you 
agree to the restrictions further on down the road, after Spring Gardens. You will 
just end up pushing the parking problem somewhere else! Please re-consider.  

Lower 
Northam 
Road 

Whilst I consider it very laudable to introduce parking restrictions along Lower 
Northam Rd to curtail the parking of cars during school drop off periods, what 
considerations have been given to prevent the parking of cars on the grass verges 
and footpaths during these periods. Bollards have been introduced near the 
Maypole roundabout to prevent this occurring but it is considered more are 
required where the new restrictions are to be imposed.  

St Johns Road Whilst applauds the proposal to extend the no waiting to improve traffic flow, has 
concerns that this will move the problems further up the road, opposite his 
property, outside St Johns Church and hall. Already has difficulty if vehicles are 
parked here. Urges Council to extend the double yellow lines from the Church Lane 
junction to the church car park to improve safety. 

St Johns Road The proposed restrictions are welcomed by residents of Newcliffe Gardens as it is 
very dangerous trying to exit this junction. The restrictions must be enforced 
though, as people already park on the double yellow lines. 

St Johns Road I support this Traffic Order because it will hopefully sort out some of the issues we 
have to face on a daily basis. St Johns Road is a fairly narrow road and is not 
suitable for on street parking. At present all available parking spaces are taken up 
most hours of the day. The nursery school called Little Acorns is partly responsible 
for this and Commercial components also encourage their staff to park in the road. 
These are both busy commercial businesses and they should provide their staff with 
off street parking or move out  of town. They have both been spoken to on 
numerous occasions, but have refused to cooperate with their neighbours. In the 
summer months visitors to the park also park here right opposite our drive making 
it very difficult to get in and out of our driveway. Commercial components 
constantly have lorries delivering to them during working ours and this is adding to 
the problem. For these reasons we would support this traffic order.It is most 
important that it is implemented in its entirety. i.e. from Newcliffe Gardens  right 
down past the funeral directors.  

26



St Johns Road I object to the Traffic Regulation Order as the proposed restrictions are being 
imposed directly outside my property which will impact the ability to park outside 
of our home and get our baby daughter in and out of the car, and the ability for 
visiting vehicles to be able to park in the vicinity of our property. I would like to 
understand exactly where the proposed parking restrictions will begin and end, the 
reasons for imposing these restrictions in this section of the road and the reasons 
for imposing 'No waiting at any time' on this road, as opposed to specified days and 
times, as seen in other proposals.  

St Johns Road There are no properties opposite this address so there is no safety issue. Never 
have received any complaints regarding customer parking. During busy times 
customers have to park on the road. Having a restriction will cause an adverse 
effect on sales. Policy to employ locally and currently have 11 staff out of 21 who 
are local to Hedge End.  Turnover is increasing and any drop in customers on our 
Trade Counter may affect this. We employ a member of staff who is disabled. At 
present we offer this person a parking space normally reserved for customers. If we 
lose the option to park on the road this member of staff would have to find 
alternative parking which would be a major issue for them. Suggests alternative 
option that from 48a - 44 a max 30 minute wait or no parking 6.30pm - 7.30am be 
applied. This would still allow customers and deliveries to park, but stop long term 
parking. Currently our premises has a white line across the dropped kerb which 
means parking requires our permission and at present it is only customers and 
delivery vehicles that park there for a short while. Also suggests that the single 
yellow line opposite be made double yellow and the white line remains as present 
or with limited waiting as mentioned above. There used to be a layby opposite but 
this was removed when the park mound and barrier was put in place forcing more 
vehicles to park on the road. 

St Johns Road 1- Inconsistency of reasons. In the statement of reasons St Johns Rd (8) a) To 
implement "no waiting at any time" traffic regulation order was to improve visibility 
at road junctions, 48 St Johns Rd is approximately 100 metres from the nearest 
junction (New Cliff Gardens). Most other restrictions in the report are between 20 
and 60 metres from their respective junctions. b) To reduce road congestion, I 
cannot comprehend the criteria for selecting this part of the road instead of 
applying it to the section closer to the town centre, where there appears to be 
more on street parking causing congestion. 2- Existing restrictions. a) Because it is 
an offence to park alongside a dropped curb and 48 St Johns Rd has one along all its 
road frontage, long term parking on the road in this section does not, to my 
knowledge, occur . b) On the park side of the road there is a summer time 
restriction, originating from the opening in 2000 of the paddling pool. If this section 
of road had a permanent TRO applied that would help to alleviate the congestion. 
Before the railings were installed there were several lay-bys which provided about 
6 off road parking spaces. 3)- Tenants. a) I have 3 small low cost residential flats at 
the site each with their own dedicated off road car parking space, so restricted 
parking for domestic deliveries would become inconvenient. b) I have 2 small, low 
cost, short tenancy, start up commercial units. One of these was rented to Hedge 
End Town Council for about 5 years prior to the new Parks Department Workshop 
opening. Both the businesses currently in occupation are owned by and employ 
Hedge End residents, as do Commercial Components who lease the other two 
units. All the units would be affected by any severe parking restrictions on St Johns 
Rd. IN CONCLUSION From discussion with various residents and town councillors it 
seems the hub of the problem lays with the restricted parking at the paddling pool 
in the summer months.   

27



St Johns Road I wish to object to the proposed implementation of 'No waiting at any time' along 
St Johns Road for the following three reasons (in order of priority). 1. As pointed 
out by the council when responding to consultation responses to a previous TRO 
(relating to waiting restrictions on St Johns Road from 2007), [quote] "Removing 
parked vehicles from the highway also removes the natural traffic calming effect of 
vehicles having to negotiate parked vehicles. This will result in an increase in vehicle 
speeds." As a father of a young family, we regularly cross St. Johns Road to get to 
the park, the paddling pool, the local Rainbows/Brownies at 2000 Centre etc., and I 
have serious concerns that this will become increasingly dangerous if the proposed 
parking restrictions are implemented. Cars already drive too fast along this road 
(when considering the direct access to properties, businesses and community 
buildings). Encouraging them to drive faster by removing the calming effect of 
parked vehicles (on a nice straight, downhill road) will make it increasingly 
dangerous for both pedestrians and cyclists. 2. The stretch of road outside the front 
of our property provides enough parking spaces for between three and four 
vehicles. Since we've lived in our house, I've spoken to a number of people who 
park here, with uses ranging from visiting (not an exhaustive list) 2000 Centre, 
Hedge End Village Hall, HEYCA, the shops in the village and on Bursledon Road, the 
park / paddling pool, the funeral directors, any one of the three churches in the 
road, Commercial Components and the Police Station, not to mention people 
visiting my house, or those of our neighbours. If these parking spaces were 
removed, the next closest available stretch of road without parking restrictions will 
be that at the rear of our property, directly opposite the entrance to our driveway 
on Granada Road. Here there is space for two vehicles to park and, unless vehicles 
are parked with two wheels up on the pavement, it is almost impossible for us to 
get onto or off of our driveway. Granada Road is not a wide road at any point, but 
the carriageway is only 4.7 m wide in front of our driveway. To drive out of our 
property requires us to edge forwards until we can see past the end of the fence, 
and along Granada Road. If more vehicles were parked opposite, the likelihood of 
vehicles driving on the 'wrong' side of the road will increase, making egress from 
our driveway more dangerous. Furthermore, with vehicles parked here, it would 
also make it very awkward for our neighbours and the couple who live opposite to 
get onto and off of their driveways. We all use our driveways (as opposed to 
perhaps taking the easier option of parking on the road), but encouraging more 
vehicles to park here (by taking away the parking spaces on St Johns Road) will 
make it harder for the owners of these properties to easily and safely use their 
driveways. 3. All the properties along this section of St Johns Road have visitor 
(ourselves included). Removing the on-street parking along this section of the road 
will make it increasingly difficult for visitors to find a parking space close to our 
house. I can see how congestion might be improved, but this would be to the 
detriment of the overall safety of all road users due to the increased speeds of 
vehicles. Myself and my partner have both used the junction of St Johns Road and 
Chapel Drove nearly every day for over three years and can honestly state that we 
have never felt that safety has been reduced as a result of the visibility at this 
junction. 

28



St Johns Road We are the proprietors of a small business and we currently lease a small 
commercial unit at the site where Commercial Components also lease. We are also 
residents of Hedge End. In the 3 ½ years of which we have been trading from this 
address we have never really encountered any major problems with the part of the 
road outside the section of 48 St. Johns Road. This is a dropped curb area any way 
which allows any traffic to flow freely around this point. It is also an approved small 
commercial area approved by the council, due to rate requests etc. Any severe 
parking restrictions would restrict the essential free movement for the businesses. 
We believe the congestion problem with St.John’s Road lays in other areas, 
primarily towards the town centre and in the summer time outside the paddling 
pool. Also with more and more household’s owning two cars plus, the road outside 
the resident’s areas are becoming more populated. There are no lay-bys provided 
to alleviate these problems.  

St Johns Road OBJECTIONS a) SAFETY - removing parked cars will increase traffic speed, which is 
already excessive, likely resulting in serious accident. Traffic, particularly at night 
can travel very fast and this is not being addressed here or by police speed traps 
etc. b) RESIDENTS PARKING - this will be serious issue for many people, particularly 
as many houses do not have off-road parking. Potential problems:- 1. BLOCK 
SURROUNDING ROADS - knock on effects to those residents and potential disputes. 
2. SAFETY - walking home (I have two young children) on 
unlit roads without pavements. 3. CRIME - residents will have to leave vehicles in 
unlit, unsupervised roads and this could prove magnet for car crime. c) VISIBILITY 
AT JUNCTIONS - is this really such an issue at present? The junction with Church 
Lane already has yellow lines and presumably these were originally designed to 
leave sufficient space or have the guidelines/rules changed? How many accidents 
have occurred with cars pulling out? How many accidents would occur from 
increase in speed if cars are removed? 3. SOLUTIONS A) CONGESTION - this will be 
worst at certain times of day (rush hour) or year (summer when paddling pool is 
open) and therefore:- i) RESIDENT PERMITS - reduce cars and also to a quantifiable 
maximum number. ii) REDIRECT TRAFFIC - encourage traffic to use 
Bursledon/Upper Northam roads which are more suitable to traffic volumes. 
Possibly via traffic calming measures, signage etc. iii) RESTRICTED TIMES PARKING - 
congestion only occurs at certain times (rush hour) .: no parking could be 
introduced between say 8:00-9:00 and 4:00-6:00 mon-fri. This would still penalise 
residents, but would be more equitable and justifiable. This would likely reduce 
safety though as speed would increase just as people need to cross road (single 
pavement). iv) PARK/PADDLING POOL PARKING - much of parking in summer is due 
to visitors to paddling pool and therefore why not encourage them to park 
elsewhere. Could have small scale 'park & ride' type arrangement or have formal 
arrangement to use Social Club car park etc. Signs could direct people to correct 
place to park. This could also improve safety re crossing road (single pavement) 
which will only get worse with no parking and increase in speed. B) VISIBILITY - 
restrictions already exist near junctions, and do volume of vehicles/incidents justify, 
but could introduce:- i) MIRRORS - this would enable cars at junctions to see 
approaching traffic and would be very cost-effective method which whilst relatively 
cheap would definitely have favourable impact on safety. ii) WARNING SIGNS - e.g. 
slow down junction etc. iii) SPEED CONTROLS - signs, traffic calming measures on 
approach to junctions etc.  

St Johns Road Cant wait to get double yellow lines. Deliveries cant get to the property without 
blocking the road. Cant get in and out of the drive due to parked vehicles. Abuse 
from drivers. Parking for the paddling pool is a nightmare. Pre school parents park 

29



opposite the drive. Parking by shop staff and other commercial premises in the 
road. Its becoming a dangerous road. 

St Johns Road 
and Church 
Lane 

The reason for the objection is that such restrictions creates a 'Clearway' 
encouragement for the ever increasing traffic to use St Johns Road through to 
Hedge End. The encouragement of traffic will further pollute the neighbourhood 
and compromise pedestrians. The claim that Church Lane is obstructed by parked 
cars is exaggerated and untrue. However the ability of Church Lane to remain clear 
is probably dependent upon St Johns Road not being subjected to a change in the 
current restrictions. 

Turnpike Way Whilst I support the introduction of no waiting along this road I have real concerns 
that the lack of parked cars will increase the speed of traffic heading along Turnpike 
Way from Upper Northam Road. Currently traffic is slowed by parked vehicles on 
the bends. Road is heavily used by children going to the local schools. Suggests 
some form of traffic calming is installed between Shafford Meadows and Upper 
Northam Road. 

Turnpike Way Restricting parking in Turnpike Way will have a massive impact on the local 
residents in Shafford Meadows. There is only limited parking available in Shafford 
Meadows particularly for visitors and this is on the closest location available. Does 
not agree with the statement of reasons and feels that parking further along 
Turnpike Way is more of a road safety issue. The road is relatively wide There are 
other locations in Hedge End where the road is narrower and tighter where parking 
occurs on bends 

Turnpike Way Placing restrictions on Turnpike Way will cause drivers to speed more than at 
present. Cars parked slow drivers down. If the restrictions are to be accepted then 
traffic calming should be installed. Shafford Meadows has a very limited number of 
visitor parking spaces leading to considerable problems on the site.  Residents have 
signed to restrictive covenants which dictate that where residents have more than 
the allocation of cars for the property these cars need to be parked away from the 
development. Turnpike Way is the nearest option for this parking and the existence 
of this parking was a key factor in the decision to purchase the property in a 
development with such limited onsite parking. Where does the Council advise us to 
park to be able to comply with the covenants? Suggests that residents can rent a 
key to the gate for the Turnpike Way Car Park which is an underused resource. 

Turnpike Way This is a totally out of order proposal. We already have many issues with parking on 
our road, Turnpike Way having some stretches of parking, if necessary, was a major 
reason for purchasing our home as allowed an option for visitors to park. The 
restrictions are unnecessary and is already a rat run with most cars unaware of the 
30mph speed limit, so by reducing on street parking this will make this worse as 
currently people slow down for the stationary vehicles. 

Turnpike Way Parking restrictions on Turnpike way will impact upon access for visitors and 
residents of Shafford Meadows. There are no alternative parking places near the 
homes adjacent to Turnpike Way and removal of the road spaces will impact upon 
all the housing developments in the area as people try to find parking. There are 
also potential social and safety implications should road parking be removed. 

30



Turnpike Way Removal of the parking available on this stretch of the road will impact the local 
residents greatly. The Shafford Meadows development has a very limited number 
of visitor parking spaces, leading to considerable problems with the site. There are 
also restrictions in place to prevent people parking on the road within shafford 
meadows. The section of Turnpike Way heading West from Shafford Meadows is 
the only nearby option for parking away from the development. The ability to park 
on this stretch of road was a key factor in our decision to purchase a property in a 
development with such limited onsite parking. It provides a vital pressure-valve for 
parking onsite. Not necessarily for everyday use, but for those occasions when 
having visitors. Having some on street parking nearby means that residents do not 
need to park illegally or inconvenience neighbours on other nearby heavily 
populated residential roads. If Eastleigh Borough Council intends to prohibit parking 
on this stretch, then you must advise us where else we can use it's likely this would 
force residents to park in gullycroft mead and other neighbouring roads. Currently 
only 1 or 2 cars park on this stretch - all visitors or residents from the shafford 
meadows estate. There is not prolific or extended parking in this area. The cars act 
as a traffic claiming measure and force traffic to slow down. Without this 
interruption in flow of traffic I fear turnpike way would only become quicker and 
more dangerous. I also disagree with the provided reasoning : "to improve road 
safety by restricting parking on the bends." This is a wide road and a narrow bend. 
Parking, particularly on the outside of the bend, does not create any road safety 
issues. There are also plenty of other (tighter) bends around Hedge End, on 
narrower roads, where parking continues to be allowed and causes problems. For 
example on Kings Copse Road near the junction with Kings Copse Avenue, and 
again near the junction with Havendale. I don't think Eastleigh Borough Council 
have realised the important role this parking zone fulfils, the use this area gets and 
the increased speeds that would be reached on the road without any cars.  

Upper St 
Helens Road 

There is no suggestion of how to deal with overspill parking suggesting that the 
Council wish us to park further up the road or in Heath House Lane. With increasing 
numbers of new build what solutions are to be made for existing home owners who 
bought their houses with the expectation re the amount of on road parking that 
existed. Alternative option is to pave the grassy areas to allow 2 wheels to park on 
the verges as has been done in other areas. Concerned about the impact on 
property value. 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

Supports the proposals. Upper St Helens Road heavily congested near Lyons Close 
up to the junction with Heath House Lane causing major hazards both to road users 
and residents trying to exit their drives 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

Supports the proposals. This is desperately needed as the road gets constantly 
blocked with cars, most of whom do not live in the road. Suggests that the 
restrictions should run the whole length of the top of the road 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

Supports the proposals to improve safety and traffic flow 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

Supports the proposals but would like the lines extended further on their side of 
the road also 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

Double yellow lines should be applied to the whole of Upper St Helens Road as if 
not inconsiderate drivers will just park further down the road which will just move 
problems to other areas. Photos enclosed showing parking on the junctions and 
half on the pavement near to Stockholm Drive 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

I support the the additional No Waiting at Any Time restrictions as the road and 
junctions are difficult to navigate with the current level of vehicles parked in the 
road. However, this must be monitored to ensure the vehicles do NOT park further 

31



down the road or in side roads, thus creating the same hazards elsewhere.  

Upper St 
Helens Road 

Looking at the proposals and the way the cars are parked and driven in Upper St 
Helens Road I do not think this is going to work. Cars do not keep to the speed limit 
and cars park on both sides of the road. If this is passed all you are doing is moving 
it down the road to the next junction. Cars park on the footway making people walk 
in the road risking being hit by a car.  Suggests no parking all the way down Upper 
St Helens Road would be the way forward. If not I am sure someone will get hit by a 
car. Many of us have had our driveways made bigger to park offroad but we are 
now being made to pay by other people parking outside our homes. 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

We acknowledge that there is a problem with vehicles parked on the highway in 
Upper St Helens Road from its junction with Heath House Lane to Lyons Place. Our 
observation Is that this is caused by households with large numbers of vehicles and 
insufficient space on their own driveways. A significant proportion of these vehicles 
are light vans or are of similar size. (In some cases there appears to be a reluctance 
of residents to use their drives in order to 'protect' the space outside their house). 
The amount of car parking available on the highway is limited by the narrowness of 
the road. We believe that the proposed Traffic Order if implemented in its current 
form will increase pressure on the remaining u space where restrictions do not 
apply and divert excess parking into those areas not covered by the Order (eg 
Stockholm Drive, Heath House Gardens, and Coniston Gardens) resulting in further 
competition for space, conflict and inappropriate parking. The number of vehicles 
will not reduce but the space available will. We own a single small car that can be 
accommodated on our drive which has a capacity of one car. No thought has been 
given to where visitors and workmen visiting properties will park. We consider that 
there has been a lack of consultation with residents. There appears to be no 
detailed evidence to support the solution and we would ask that further work be 
undertaken to investigate causes, solutions and impacts before adopting this 
measure.  

Upper St 
Helens Road 

Wishes to object due to the lines being longer than the standard 10m at most 
junctions. The extension to the lines are not necessary and appear to be longer for 
the residents of that area who have complained to Hedge End Council about 
cars/vans parking outside their properties.  This proposal will move parking of 
vehicles to the Upper parts of the road that is already congested with vehicles. 
Suggests putting markings on all junctions for 10m only for safety or make Upper St 
Helens Road restricted parking of some sort for residents only. 

Upper St 
Helens Road 

The proposals do not make sense. All that will be achieved is to move one problem 
to another i.e the top end of St Helens Road.  A sensible idea would be to make the 
entire road  a no parking restriction between the hours of 6am -6pm Monday - 
Friday which would stop the builders vans and cars that are causing this problem 
and to make parking for residents only. 

32



Upper St 
Helens Road 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment and place an objection to the proposed 
parking restrictions in Upper Saint Helens Road, Hedge End. There is clearly an issue 
about parking here, however I believe the proposal does not take into account of, 
and will exacerbate the problems that already exist along the south west end of 
Upper Saint Helens Rd. I would have appreciated a wider consultation with all 
residents in the road to enable a solution that works for everyone. My objection is 
based on the view that this proposal will not improve road safety by reducing 
congestion and obstructions caused by parked vehicles, as described. I give the 
following reasons: 1. The proposed parking restrictions do not take into account the 
existing congestion and obstruction caused by parked vehicles in the south west 
end of Upper Saint Helens Road. There is a particular problem of commercial 
vehicles being parked there at night and weekends. A number of residents, 
including myself, now make a point of keeping a car parked on the road outside 
their houses to keep a space on their driveway for family/visitors to park, and to 
avoid unsightly commercial vehicles parking in view from their front window. The 
owners of these commercial vehicles have space on their own driveways, but do 
not park there. 2. The problems described in paragraph 1, are a serious road safety 
issue on several counts: • Poor visibility up and down the road when exiting a 
driveway • A particular danger to families with young children having to park away 
from houses and having to cross the road from between parked vehicles • Cars 
speeding down the road “overtaking” parked vehicles • Frustration and anger of 
other drivers at residents who are caught in the congestion and want to turn into 
their driveways Drivers driving their vehicles on the pavement/verges to allow 
vehicles to pass them or to pass other vehicles 3. The proposed parking restrictions 
will move the problems adjacent to Lyon’s Place to the south west part of Upper 
Saint Helens Road, and the near side roads. This will exacerbate the existing road 
safety and congestion issues at the south west end of Upper Saint Helens Road, and 
create new issues in other adjacent roads. There is no doubt that the road 
congestion problem is a long term issue for this area with residents owning multiple 
cars and older children remaining at home. I would like to offer a solution that 
would help alleviate the problem and possibly compliment the no parking proposal 
adjacent to Lyons Place. At the south west end of Upper Saint Helens Road in front 
of houses numbers 1 – 21 and numbers 2 – 24 , there are grass verges between the 
pavement and the road. The grass verges could be removed and made into 
residents parking bays. One for each house and only for the parking of cars. Any 
commercial vehicles should be parked on the owners’ driveways or elsewhere. 
Visiting contractors’ vehicles would need to be accommodated in the daytime with 
the resident taking responsibility for their safe parking. This proposal will reduce 
the knock on effect of, and compliment the parking restrictions adjacent to Lyons 
Place, improve the overall safety of Upper Saint Helens Road, remove the danger 
caused by commercial vehicles parking on the road at night and weekend, and 
ensure residents have safe parking for additional cars and visitors.  

West Road Supports the proposal to introduce parking restrictions at the end of the road 
adjoining Upper Northam Drive for at least 3 car lengths. Further restrictions as 
proposed would simply move the problem to the opposite side of the road. 
Suggests that restrictions are introduced along the entire length of the north side to 
prevent verge and double parking. As experienced when an emergency vehicle 
couldn't access the road and the ill neighbour had to be trolleyed half way down 
the road 

33



West Road The original request to the council was to enforce Amazon to comply with their 
operating conditions NOT to impose restrictions on the residents. However, is in 
favour of an extension to the double yellow lines at the entrance to West Road of 
similar length to those on the Upper Northam Road side. 

West Road Have not asked for these restrictions. Would like to see Resident Only parking 
implemented to deter nearby workers using as a car park along with yellow line 
extensions at the entrance of West Road due to limited visibility causing safety 
concerns 

West Road I can never understand why some people don’t park their cars in their drives. The 
recent issues with ambulances not being able to get up the road has brought this 
problem to a head. 
Since the warehouse / factories have been built there is a potential of Amazon vans 
and Ericson employees trying to park in our road which may contribute to why 
some residence park in the road. At the moment we have to leave West Road on 
the wrong side of the road because of the parking. This is a head on collision 
waiting to happen. So yes we totally agree with  the proposal to have double yellow 
lines three car lengths into West Road on both sides. I would like to go further and 
see single yellow lines on the rest of West Road with the same restrictions as in 
Upper Northam Drive. This would make residence park in their drives with the 
knowledge that of Amazon vans and Ericson employees would be prosecuted for 
parking. We hope these suggestions can be upheld and we look forward to the 
improvements to parking in West Road  

West Road Although we support the proposal to introduce no parking restrictions at the end of 
the road adjoining Upper Northam Drive for at least 3 car lengths from the end of 
the current restriction. We have concerns that vehicles will continue to park on the 
north side of West Road (odd nos) and would respectfully request that measures 
are taken to prevent this potentially dangerous practice. We recently experienced 
an issue where one vehicle was parked half on / half off the verge on the north side 
with another vehicle parked opposite on the south side which prevented an 
ambulance from gaining access to the end of West Road resulting in the crew 
having to transport a seriously ill neighbour half way down the road on a trolley. 
There are also a significant number of private cones being used to prevent verge 
and non-resident parking,  spoiling the appearance and amenity of the area. With 
the increased traffic to / from the Amazon site at Strategic park, we would also 
request that no waiting is introduced on the approaches to the Kanes Hill 
roundabout (where the white van and refreshment trailer were stored up until 
their removal at the beginning of November), Commines Way is effectively reduced  
to a single carriageway which can become completely blocked if vehicles are 
queuing to enter the Amazon site. We have witnessed significant congestion and a 
number of near misses over the past 6 months 

West Road I Would like to forward my objection to the proposed restrictions regarding parking 
in the above road. I reside at number 8 West Road with my disabled husband we 
currently have only 1 off road parking space and have regular visits from nursing 
staff and our daughter who helps me with my husbands care. Should these 
restrictions be put in place it will make my every day life very difficult where would 
people helping my husband be expected to park. From a safety point of view I agree 
that yellow lines at the junction with Upper Northam Drive be extended to a length 
of three cars. 

34



West Road I am writing to voice my objection to the proposed parking restrictions in my above 
road. I live at 8 West Road and believe this proposal would be detrimental to the 
residents of my road. I myself am disabled and rely on care from my wife and visits 
from my daughter and nurse. To restrict parking in my road would cause difficulty 
in these visits taking place and make everyday life more difficult. 
I agree that the yellow lines at the junction of Upper Northam Drive & West road 
should be extended but to restrict parking to the entire road will cause residents a 
massive hardship. 

West Road Objects to waiting restrictions. These are neither welcome or needed. Double 
yellow lines should be extended into the junction of Upper Northam Drive before a 
head on collision occurs. 

West Road The driveway to the care home cannot always accommodate workers cars. Do not 
want the council to install yellow lines along the length of the road. Yellow lines 
should be painted only at the junction and extend about three car lengths in Wets 
Road which will allow safe exit from the road 

West Road As a resident of West Road I do not want double yellow lines along the road. 

West Road Painting double yellow lines in West Road would not be practical. Visitors and 
relatives would have nowhere to park. West Road should be used for residents 
parking only. 

West Road This letter is to confirm that the residents of the above address do not want double 
yellow lines in West Road 

West Road We are opposed to yellow lines up West Road, it would mean our friends and 
family would have nowhere to park, also 2 of our household are seriously ill and in 
the future might possibly need carers/help etc. and they wont be able to park. 
There are already carers that visit others in the road. Some residents don't have 
drives. Yellow lines are not the answer, it would be severely problematic to West 
Road residents. 

West Road I am writing to you with hope that you will change your mind about us having 
double yellow lines in West Road. We have lived here for 57 years and parking in 
the road hasn’t been much of a problem to us. Another thing there are quite a 
number of elderly people in the road who have carers daily which they would find a 
problem, plus nowhere for visitors etc to park. So I would like you to think again 
about the yellow lines as we do not want them. 

West Road Being a resident of more than 30 years I was appalled to learn of the proposed plan 
to put double yellow lines down the said road. Obviously does not live here or they 
would realise the massive inconvenience this will cause. Not until the employees of 
Amazon chose to park here did this issue arise. Why should we be penalised for 
their actions. (Other page of letter missing) 

West Road I have lived here for 47 years and do not wish for no parking (double yellow lines) in 
West Road. There are mainly old age pensioners with disabilities. This would make 
life very hard for us 

West Road I am 94 and have care workers and doctor attend every day 7 times a week and 
have lived here for over 50 years and do not wish to have double yellow lines 

West Road I will go with the majority regarding the double yellow lines in our road. 

West Road I am writing to oppose to the idea of double yellow lines. I have lived in West Road 
for 25 years and the idea of yellow lines would have a detrimental effect on 
residents who many don’t have driveways to park their vehicles. Please don’t 
proceed with double yellow lines. 

35



West Road Following the proposed changes for yellow lines in West Road I would like to 
express concerns regarding these changes. The double yellow lines in West Road 
should only be at the junction where the problems are present. I therefore wish no 
changes other than extended yellow lines at the junction to be actioned. 

West Road We object strongly to the idea of having yellow lines down our road. We need the 
space for family and friends visiting, as well as the fact that I am disabled and 
cannot walk. 

West Road I strongly object to the double yellow lines on West Road. We have limited parking 
as it is and this will cause huge issues when we have family and friends due to visit. 

West Road Having studied the proposal for restricted parking which would mean double yellow 
lines outside my property, is in fact a step too far. Yes we get the occasional day 
long car parker, but what really concerns me and possibly my neighbours is not 
being able to stop at the road junction on the correct side of the road. Please 
extend the double yellow lines on both sides of the road to the recommended 
distance of no parking which if I remember correctly used to be 15 metres and drop 
the current proposal. 

West Road We are writing in response to the proposed no parking plans for West Road. We 
believe that there is no need for these restrictions along the road as this would 
cause parking issues for residents and visitors. 

West Road I believe that the nearest you should park to a junction is 10 metres. I would like to 
see the existing yellow lines extended to 10 metres and no further. This is ample 
space to allow safe exit from the road, any further is unnecessary and deprives 
residents of valuable parking space. 

West Road As residents of West Road for 37 years we strongly object to the proposed scheme 
to make parts of West road no waiting zones. The proposal would severely effect 
the safety of the residents and the already limited parking available for visitors. 
What is required is monitoring and control of white vans that have caused 
blockages and hazards in the vicinity since Amazon arrived. There is also a 24 hr 
noise emanating from 'sleeping policemen' that have been installed to their access 
road 

West Road I'm objecting as I have friends and family that often visit and need to park out the 
front. This will be inconvenient. 

West Road We did not ask for these lines and do not want them. 

Winchester 
Street 

There is very little parking for the seven cottages 24-36 Winchester Street. 
Additional waiting restrictions will prevent residents from parking outside their 
houses. It will be very unfortunate if the Council take the very few parking spaces 
that these cottages have. There is very little parking in the village. The seven 
cottages have 11 cars between them and struggle every day to get a space due to 
the spaces being occupied by staff of businesses in the village.  I feel that there is a 
strong case for residents parking places which would then limit the spaces to 
private cars rather than large vans and delivery lorries as is the case now.  Also the 
speed limit should be controlled by the flashing speed limit signs which you see in 
many busy roads. 

36



Winchester 
Street 

I wish to object in the strongest possible terms to the proposed changes to parking 
on Winchester Street Botley as covered by TRO 201 - 546 This proposal will have a 
very negative impact on the majority of houses on Winchester Street where thanks 
in part to the council’s repeated granting of excessively and unnecessarily wide 
driveways, on street parking is now in high demand. This problem extends further 
to Pern Drive and surrounding streets where residents have taken to leaving rude 
notices on vehicles which are parked perfectly legally, such is the level of feeling 
around the shortage of suitable parking provision. As such I would challenge you to 
prove that you have made every reasonable effort to publicise these proposals, to 
all who are likely to be affected, as I believe you are obliged to. Particularly as the 
supporting information was not available on the council website until several days 
after the only sign publicising the order, stated it would be available for viewing. It 
should also be noted that the driveway known as Donkey Lane exits over the 
pavement and the double yellow lines on Winchester Street cross it, these points 
would suggest this is not in the true sense a junction as the proposal contends but 
rather a private driveway and should be treated as such. Whilst improving road 
safety is of course of paramount importance, the proposal to restrict parking to the 
northern boundary of number 28 Winchester Street will not make any significant 
impact to the visibility of the entrance to the private drive known as Donkey Lane. 
Modern thinking is to encourage on street parking to provide passive traffic calming 
in residential areas, which has proved extremely successful in many places. This 
proposal flies in the face of such educated thinking. Rather this will only serve to 
encourage drivers on Winchester Street to exceed the speed limit, as they do all too  
frequently now. I fear in approving this order, you will unwittingly be responsible 
for causing a grave accident. It would be far more appropriate to install a concealed 
entrance warning sign on Winchester Street, paired with a convex traffic mirror 
opposite Donkey Lane. Conveniently there is already a street lamp positioned 
opposite which might be utilised. This would surely be a far more appropriate 
solution as it addresses both the issue of visibility for those exiting the driveway 
and informs drivers on Winchester Street of the hazard. Further it does not cause 
an unnecessary inconvenience to the large number of residents the current 
proposal will. I trust you will see sense and amend this order accordingly  

37



Winchester 
Street 

I wish to register my objection to the proposed TRO 201 – Winchester Street. I 
cannot understand why you are proposing to take away parking places from the 
residents of Botley because of an unpaved private drive. I know that there was a 
recent accident at the area and I agree that something must be done but I do not 
believe the issues of either visibility nor road safety will be markedly improved by 
taking away parking spaces. The bigger issue is that cars and buses speed down 
Winchester Street out of control; to the point that I am often fearful when walking 
my twenty-three months old son along the pavement. Why not do something to 
control the speed limit and put a convex mirror across from Donkey Lane? This will 
ensure that the view from Donkey Lane is improved. The lack of parking in the 
village is a huge issue and is becoming an even bigger one as building increases. It is 
to the point that residents regularly need to park on Pern Drive and beyond and 
residents there are putting out cones and nasty letters on cars to keep people from 
parking in front of their houses. We bought our house knowing that there was 
street parking but also knowing that there were six parking spaces in front of the 
cottages. We have recently lost the use of one space due to our neighbours need 
for a disabled parking bay (which is completely understandable) but you are now 
proposing to take away another two spaces. This means that for the seven adjacent 
cottages there will be parking available for only three vehicles. This is ridiculous and 
frankly I would not have purchased this house had the parking been so limited. We 
have recently spoken to an estate agent who has told us that losing the parking 
spaces will very likely have a negative impact on the value of our house. To some 
this may not seem a big deal but we are a young family and our home is our 
investment for the future and so I take this very serious. I believe that public safety 
is of the utmost importance and I always want what is best for the village that I love 
but I think that there are ways to keep everyone safe while also allowing for the 
parking that is so needed for residents and those visiting the shops and restaurants 
in the village and so supporting the local economy. Traffic is undoubtedly going to 
increase with the new homes in Boorley Green and so I think that the issue of 
speeding needs to be addressed immediately. I and the rest of the village, I am 
sure, are more than willing to help with this in any way that we can.  

  

 

38



NEW
 C

LI
F

ST
 J

OHN'S
 R

OAD

CHURCH LANE

V
IC

A
R

A
G

E D
R

IV
E

LB

48.8m

W
ATER'S EDGE

WATER'S EDGE

NORM
AN

 G
AR

DE
NS

Yew Tree

41House

49

5

3

1

Hazelwood

61

7

6

Flints

76

2

72

55

82

72

17

13

6

35

10

44

42a

11

42

27

9
the Evangelist

9a

13

18

Church of St John

11

3

1

39

7a

5

7

10

9

50

26

48

24

11

1

7

12

3

56

7a

Flints 2

60

64

Walton

Walton

Seasons

Jays 8

Vicarage
The

Four 7

53

72
a

41

49

74

78

High Vie 1

10

Everon

9

Ashwood

8

Longford

ongari

Kim
oyo

moyo

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - Church Lane
Proposed Waiting Restrictions - Option 3

26/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/004 (3)

AM

SRW 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Pu
db

ro
ok

 L
ak

e

10.7m

W
A

Y

C
O

B
B

ETT

Pa
th

(u
m

)

TCB

BR
O

O
K

 L
AN

E

8.2m

AD OAK

Brooklands

Masonic
Hall

Appletrees

Tudor House

Courtney

wood

St
an

jo
rie

Sewage
Ppg
Sta

2930

Woodhill School

1

10

6

13

Garage

Brook
Cottages

1 2

18

1920

Mallow
Cottage

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - Cobbett Way 
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting At Any Time

14/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

1 of 1

TM01/01699/007

AM

TH

Existing Restrictions

41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



E
D

 &
 W

ard Bdy

M
AU

N
SELL W

AY C
U

D
W

O
R

T
H

 M
E

A
D

WALKER GDNS

C
R

Treetops
(Childrens Nursery)

12

27

13

55

6059

61

56

49

28

45

44

47 46

50

34

25

29
3033

39

7

81

75

79

73

67
72

62

74

68

66

19

18

24

213

199

207

211

209

197

191

1

217

173

187

16
5

17
1 179

185

3413
7

15
3

14
9

15
7

15
5

15
9

CUDWORTH MEAD

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting Mon-Fri 8am-9am
and 2.30pm-3.30pm

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - Cudworth Mead
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting

14/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

1 of 1

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/005

AM

TH

43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



G
A

R
R

A
TT C

LO
SE

HAMBLEHURST LANE

3

1

2

4

7

11

14

5

7

14

9

16

1

24

Single Yellow Line to be
amended to No Waiting
At Any Time

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

Bar Marking

No waiting at any time

No waiting Mon-Fri
10am-11am

Items marked for Revocation

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - Garratt Close
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time

14/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

1 of 1

Proposed No Waiting
At Any Time

TM01/01699/003

AM
TH

45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



M
APLETON ROAD

23.8m

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

D
ef

CR

H
O

B
B

 LA
N

E

El Sub Sta

28.0m

SPRING GARDENS

N
 G

ARDEN
S

Freegrounds
Infant School

79

17

79a

21

13

62

81

77

1

81a

68

79b

65

7

1

11

83

72

87

52

52
a

60
63

2

18

18

17

7

4

4

16

17

40

41

7

53

48

42
40

a
44

6

50

14

16

14c

14a

1

6

6a

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

No waiting at any time

No waiting Mon-Fri 8am-9am
and 2.30pm-3.30pm

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

HEWEB Various 2016 - Hobb Lane
Proposed Waiting Restricions

14/09/2016

1 : 1250

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/008/1

AM

TH 47



This page is intentionally left blank



LOWER NORTH

Ward Bdy

CR

WILLOW CLOS

P
O

P
LA

R
 W

A
Y

LB

25.3m

El Sub Sta

PATRICIA DRIVE

T
H

E
 H

E
D

G
E

 R
O

W
SAM ROAD

Beech Cottage

12

Ralston

96

21 1

92a

94

97

92

93a

82

95d

93

Popins

10

Juwil

Wayside

Sunny Side

74

18

6

4

13 to
16

2

1

19

1

85

83

2a
1b

70

1

1a

3

Copper Beeches House

1 to 14

73

76

2

3 to 6

68

63

66

1
2

51
61

55

56

48

64

56

66

47 62

37

68

46

5

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various Order 2016 - Hobb Lane/Lower Northam Road
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting

27/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

1 of 1

TM01/01699/008/2

AM

TH

49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Bin

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

30.64

BTIC

CL 31.12

BTIC

CL 30.83

CATV

CL 30.84

BTIC

CL 30.88

BTIC

CL 30.73

BTIC

CL 30.67

CATV

G

 

3

0

.

7

8

G

 

3

0

.

8

1

CL 30.94

IC

CL 30.86

IC

CL 30.74

IC

CL 30.80

IC

CL 31.14

IC

CL 30.54

IC

LP

LP

NP

NP

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

RS

31.21

30.92

SC

30.76

SC

SMP

30.67

SV

30.65

SV

30.99

SV Gas

30.92

SV Gas

30.80

SV Gas

EP

31.12

WM

31.01

WM
31.01

WM

30.88

WM

Sign

BS

BIN

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

CL 30.01

BTIC

CL 31.03

BTIC

CL 30.85

BTIC

CL 31.07

BTIC

G

 

3

0

.

7

7

Gate

G

 

2

9

.

6

2

G

 

2

9

.

7

3

G

 

2

9

.

7

5

CL 31.14

IC

G

 

2

9

.

8

4

CL 29.94

IC

P

RS

RS

SIB

08/

SIB

SPU

11/

SPU

12/

29.88

SV Gas

Sp 12

Sp 3

Sp 8

0.2/1T

0.2/1T

0.4/1T

0.5/1T

29.95

CATV

29.90

CATV

29.95

WM

29.91

WM

T

a

c

t

i

l

e

P

a

v

i

n

g

 

S

l

a

b

s

B

r

i

c

k

 

P

a

v

i

n

g

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

F

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

F

B

L

 

O

 

W

 

E

 

R

 

 

 

N

 

O

 

R

 

T

 

H

 

A

 

M

 

 

 

R

 

O

 

A

 

D

T

a

r

m

a

c

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

F

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

G

r

a

s

s

Tarmac

L

i

n

e

 

o

f

 

F

i

r

 

T

r

e

e

s

 

6

.

0

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

T H E   B A R L E Y C O R N

H O N G   K O N G   G A R D EN

Tarmac

O

v
e

r
h

e

a

d

 
C

a

b

l
e

O
v
e
rh

e
a
d
 C

a
b
le

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l

e

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l

e

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l

e

P

a

v

i

n

g

 

S

l

a

b

s

R

a

m

p

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

G

r

a

s

s

P

a

v

i

n

g

 

S

l

a

b

s

B
U

S

S
T
O

P

CB

I

R

F

 

1

.

3

I

R

F

 

1

.

3

CB

S

h

e

l
t
e

r

W

a

l

l

 

2

.

0

W

a

l

l

 

2

.

0

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

e

C

o

n

c

r

e

t

e

P

a

v

i

n

g

 

S

l

a

b

s

Grass

W C 

R

W

a

l
l
 

0

.

6

Tarmac

D

I

S

A

B

L

E

D

Provide new build out. Pave with

Marshall Saxon slabs to match existing.

Break out existing kerbline.

Layby to be reduced in size and

TRO to be modified. Relocate plate

and post to new location

Provide additional gully and connect into

existing storm system.

Remove existing kerb / channel

and reinstate

Extend central island and provide

new drops and tactile paving.

Existing illuminated sign to be

relocated at end of island.

Provide pedestrian refuge type 4B 1.8m

wide with non illuminated keep left  bollards

and illuminated diag 610 keep left signs

600mm dia as HCC10/C/080.

Diag 1040 hatching

Realign kerbline and relocate

disabled parking bay. Relocate

road sign accordingly

Provide new tactile paving

New carriagweway

construction

Extend traffic island and grass

verge infill

Existing st light

Existing st light

Break out existing concrete bollards and provide

new Townscape Manchester bollard with yellow

reflective banding at revised location, in order to

prevent illegal parking adjacent to CO OP

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

BO

Provide additional parking bay to

compensate for loss of bay at bus

stop.

New st light

New st light

Ennisflint Duratherm surface

treatment. existing surface course

to be relaid in HRA.

100 DUCT

PC1

PCD

PC4

PCD

PC1

PCD

PCD

PCD

PCD

PC4

PC4

PCD

PCD

PC4

PC1

PCD PC4

PCD

PC1

Relocate existing disabled bay sign

and post to new location

RS

Provide 2 no temporary signs, to be

located 50m back from refuge location

on existing street light column

NOTES:

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

2. ANY DISCREPANCIES FOUND ON SITE SHOULD BE REPORTED TO

THE OVERSEEING ORGANISATION IMMEDIATELY SO THAT

CLARIFICATION CAN BE SOUGHT PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT

OF WORK.

3. WORKS SHALL BE CARRIED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

HIGHWAYS AGENCY SPECIFICATION FOR HIGHWAY WORKS AND

HCC CONSTRUCTION DETAILS AS STATED UNLESS OTHERWISE

SPECIFIED.

4. KERBS SHALL BE PRECAST CONCRETE LAID IN ACCORDANCE

WITH HCC STD. DRAWING HCC10/C/010 UNLESS OTHERWISE

STATED.

5. FOOTWAYS SHALL BE TYPE 1B AND 2 LAID IN ACCORDANCE WITH

HCC STD. DRAWING HCC10/C/045.

6. UNCONTROLLED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING POINTS SHALL BE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH HCC STD. DRAWING HCC10/C/060 AND

HCC9/C/065.

7. HIGHWAY REINSTATEMENT ADJACENT TO NEW KERBS TO BE IN

HRA 40MM THK.

8. SEE SSE DRG NO SSE988684 FOR NEW ST LIGHTING DETAILS

LEGEND:

FOOTWAY TYPE 1B. TO BE LAID WITH 1 IN

40 CROSSFALL TO MAIN CARRIAGEWAY

UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED.

TYPE PC4 KERB - FLUSH

PRECAST CONCRETE DROPPER KERB

PC4

PCD

TYPE PC1 KERB - 100 UPSTAND

PC1

TYPE EF EDGING

EF

 PROPOSED KERBLINE

FOOTWAY TYPE 2 WITH MARSHALLS SAXON

PAVING SLABS

BO

TOWNSCAPE MANCHESTER BOLLARD WITH

YELLOW REFLECTIVE BANDING

AREAS OF EXISTING HIGHWAY HIGHLIGHTED

THUS : SURFACE COAT TO BE RELAID IN

40MM HRA AND ENNISFLINT DURATHERM

PRODUCT APPLIED.

NEW STREET LIGHT TO BE INSTALLED BY

SEC

REV AMENDMENTS DATE CAD CHKD APPD

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

ECONOMY, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

IMPLEMENTATION GROUP

HCC CAD FILE: U:\Transportation & Engineering\FILE SYSTEM\Ehc - hampshire capital\HC01509 - Lower Northam Road, Hedge End - Safety Engineering\Drawings\001c.dwg

HCC CAD PLOT: 02/03/2012 15:21:48

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER REVSCALE @ A1 DATE SHEET NUMBER

SCHEME

APPROVED

CHECKED

CAD

DESIGNERCONSULTANTCLIENT

JOB No.

JULY 2016

LOWER NORTHAM ROAD

HEDGE END. PEDESTRIAN

CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS

 PLAN AND DETAILS

OPTION WITH HALF WIDTH

BUILD OUT OPPOSITE BUS

STOP

HC 01509 / 004

GJW

1:100

PLAN : SAFETY ENGINEERING PROPOSALS 1:100

GB

51

AutoCAD SHX Text
Material

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Scheme Ref.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Background

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Border

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Letter colour

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Ref.

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
SIGN FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Width

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Height

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
x-height

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
7014var

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Lower Northam Road Hedge End

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
75.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Class RA2 (12899-1:2007)

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
0.61sq.m

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
730mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
835mm

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
TRAFFIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
ISLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
AHEAD



T
his page is intentionally left blank



30.5m

TCBs

El Sub Sta

LOWER NORTHAM ROAD

PC

C
E

D
A

R
 C

LO
S

E

Mast

Ward Bdy

CR

Shelter

3a

9b

11

9a

(PH)

The
Barleycorn Inn

8

2

18

11b
11a

13
Bank

11 to 14

5a

7a
7

5

2a

9

1

1d

1b

1

Bank

1a

Bank

1c

3

Shelter

0

2

6

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

(region)

No waiting at any time

Areas On Highway Designated
As Disabled Persons Parking
Places

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

 

HEWEB Various Order 2016 -Lower Northam Road
No Waiting At Any Time and Relocation of Disabled
Persons Parking Place 

31/10/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

1 of 1

Existing Restrictions

Exisiting Disabled Bay to be relocated

Extension to
'No Waiting At Any Time'

TM01/01699/012

AM

TH

53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



38.7m

Recreation Ground

Sinks

Play Area

Paddling Pool

EL D
R

O
V

E

ALLOTMENT ROAD

ST
 J

OHN'S
 R

OAD

33.5m

Spring

NEW
 C

LI
FF

E G
ARDENS

OAK TREE GARDENS

EE C
LO

SE

El Sub Sta

GRANADA ROAD

El Sub Sta

8.8m

63

14
a

14
b

16

24
b

24
a

28 to 34

22
b

38

34

1d

2

Berryfield
Court

1 to 42

45a

45

47

43

51a

49a
53

49

51

Community

35

Centre

26
a

Hedge End

Pol Sta

26

28

Village Hall

1

2

errace

12

Club

12
b

14a

14
12

a

39

3

1a

Hedge End

40

1b

Chapel

Methodist Church

12

44

40
a

48

9

4

9a

1 t
o 3

8

1

2

10

14b

23

14c

13

56

48
a

50

Hall

St John's
Church

Carpenters
Court

1

13

1

26

22

24

24a
20

20a

4

66
b

29

29a

27

25

66
a

25a

27a

68

72
a

72

60

4

2113

16

6

5

66

33

31a

31

2235

9

5

1

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - St John's Road
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting at Any Time

14/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/009

AM

TH 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Recreation Ground

Sinks

Play Area

Paddling Pool

ST
 J

OHN'S
 R

OAD

FE
 G

ARDENS

OAK TREE GARDENS

El Sub Sta

GRANADA ROAD

El Sub Sta

38

34

1d

2

Berryfield
Court

1 to 42

26
a

26

28

2

12

Club

3

1a

Hedge End

40

1b

Chapel

Methodist Church

12

44

40
a

48
9

4

9a

1 t
o 3

1

2

10

14b

23

13

56

48
a

50

Hall

St John's
Church

Carpenters
Court

1

13

1

26

22

24

24a
20

20a

4

66
b

29
29a

27

25

66
a

25a

27a

68

2a

72

60

4

21

16

5

66

31a

31

5

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various Order 2016 - St John's Road
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time (Amended)

05/12/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/009A

AM

SRW 57



This page is intentionally left blank



SHAFFORD MEADOWS

THISTLE ROAD

Play Area

G
O

O
DALLS LAN

E

FB

TURNPIKE WAY

Pon

El Sub Sta

Recreation Ground

TU
RN

PI
KE 

W
AY

VALE

41

64

39

Wildern Farmhouse

45

Pavilion

22

Tk

31
 to

 4
2

30

El Sub Sta

68

147

Lucerne Gardens

Shafford Meadows

Proposed double yellow lines
already exist on site, but 
ommitted from previous orders
due to administrative error.

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various Order 2016 - Turnpike Way-
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time

21/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

1 of 1

Existing Restrictions

TM/01699/010

AM

TH

59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HELENS ROAD

El Sub Sta

H
EA

TH
 H

O
US

E 
GA

RD
EN

S

El
 S

ub
 S

ta G
W

E
LO

 D
R

IV
E

LYONS PLACE

UP
PE

R 
ST

 H
EL

EN
S 

RO
AD

UPPER ST

46.3m

Issues

HEATH HOUSE LANE

H
E

A
T

H
 H

O
U

SE
 C

LO
SE

Def

6

16

20

34

38

Fenella

Woodside

1

11

Blue Haze
Crownhill

Tr
en

ho
lm

e

105

41
2

13

24

27

12

31

109

107

105a

Tremar

ane End

Colerne

Portnoy

28a

Je
sm

on
d

Land Acres

-D
en

e

Malay

Fair Winds

Si
m

alo
r

Rosary

1

Burnt Wood

2

The

6

43

48

45c

45b

45a

2

47b

47a

52

42

54

to

60

14

6

30

32
 to

 4
0

95b

95d

38

97

95c

40

Ki
llig

ar
th

38
a

Sh
ira

le
e

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - Upper St Helens Road/Lyons Place - 
Proposed Prohibition of Waiting At Any Time

14/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/006
AM

TH 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Track

El Sub Sta

CO
M

IN
ES

 W
AY

Strat

55.2m

Wd Pp

Tr
ac

k

W
ES

T 
R

O
A

D

Stone

LB

A 33
4

 WAY

19

14

13

24

Windmill Cottage

Greengates

Four

4

Langtons

Albedo

Oaks

The Bays

2

1

Ab
bo

ts
 L

ei
gh

Hy
el

an
ds

M
as

te
rto

n

Sp
rin

gf
ie

ldM
ed

in
a

St
 M

al
o

23

27

28

1

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - West Road - 
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time

14/09/2016

1 : 1250

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Resrictions

TM01/01699/002

AM

TH 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Track

El Sub Sta

CO
M

IN
ES

 W
AY

Strat

55.2m

Wd Pp

Tr
ac

k

W
ES

T 
R

O
A

D

Stone

LB

A 33
4

WAY

19

14

13

24

Windmill Cottage

Greengates

Four

4

Langtons

Albedo

Oaks

The Bays

2

1

Ab
bo

ts
 L

ei
gh

Hy
el

an
ds

M
as

te
rto

n

Sp
rin

gf
ie

ldM
ed

in
a

St
 M

al
o

23

27

28

1

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various Order 2016 - West Road
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time (Amended)

05/12/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/002A

AM

SRW 65



This page is intentionally left blank



WHITES WAY

POMEROY CRESCENT

ESS

M
E

SC
O

T
T 

M
E

A
D

O
W

S

G
A

M
M

O
N

 C
LO

S
E

Tr
ac

k

Gas Govn

LB

T

The
Salvation Army

Church and
Community

Centre

Childrens Nursery

21

4

146 to 168

139

133

5

11

3 
to

 9

15

2

1

11
52

121

123

101 to 119

1

138

130108 to 128

2

1

33

67

56 to 76

43

79

45 to 65

78

106

2

1 to 23

44 to 54

9

1

11

15

25

29

29

21 to 41

34 to 54

19

2 to 12

14 to 24

1 to 11

20

12
30

10

2

32 to 42

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various Order 2016 - Whites Way
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time

05/10/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

1 of 1

Existing Restrictions

Existing School Zig Zag
Markings to be removed 
and replaced with 'No Waiting
At Any Time' which will join
with the existing 'No Waiting' restrictions
at the junction with Gammon Close

TM01/01699/011

AM

TH

67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LB
TCB

A 334

Botley
Sl

M
ill-

 ra
ce

El Sub Sta

FB

11.9m

Donkey Lane

Allotment Gardens

Tennis court

B
 3354

10.7m

WARNER MEWS

10.1m

9.1m

Track

Millstream House

37

39
35

Botley Mills

13 Craft & Business Centre1

28

1517

22a
18

Spindrift

Honeysuckle Cott

7

10 PH

16
1

5

14

Recycling
Business

15

House
The Mill6

2

1

2

4

Old Bakery

19

24

11
13

9

The

Fire
Station

44
42

38

House

2

The Mews1

Winchester

1113

10

20

PO
16

14a 14 12

21

25

43

11

33

5

31

31a

26

15 to 18

24 20a

1

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E

HIGH STREET

Botley Fire Station

Winchester Street

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various 2016 - 
Winchester Street/Donkey Lane - Proposed No
Waiting At Any Time

14/09/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/001

AM
TH69



This page is intentionally left blank



LB
TCB

A 334

Botley
Sl

M
ill-

 ra
ce

El Sub Sta

FB

11.9m

Donkey Lane

Allotment Gardens

Tennis court

B
 3354

10.7m

WARNER MEWS

10.1m

9.1m

Track

Millstream Hou

37

39
35

Botley Mills

13 Craft & Business Centre1

28

1517

30

22a
18

Spindrift

Honeysuckle Cott

7

10 PH

16

1

5

14

Recycling
Business

15

House
The Mill6

2

1

2

4

Old Bakery

19

24

11
13

9

The

Fire
Station

44
42

38

House

2

The Mews1

Winchester

1113

10

20

PO
16

14a 14 12

21

25

43

11

33

5

31

31a

26

15 to 18

24 20a

1

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E
C

H
U

R
C

H
 LA

N
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 LA
N

E

HIGH STREET

Botley Fire Station

Winchester Street

DRAWING No.

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE                   

CHECKED BY

Key to Restriction Types Displayed

No waiting at any time

Faded confirmed items
(point)

Faded confirmed items
(line)

Faded confirmed items
(region)

 

HEWEB Various Order 2016 - Winchester Street
Proposed No Waiting At Any Time (Amended)

05/12/2016

NTS

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Licence No. 100019622 2016

Existing Restrictions

TM01/01699/001A

AM

SRW 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 9 January 2017 

AGEAS BOWL REVIEW APRIL – SEPTEMBER 2016  

Report of the Area Manager in consultation with the Head of Transportation 
and Engineering Services, Head of Environmental Health and Customer 

Services Manager  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that this Committee:- 

(1) Note the complaints, comments and recommendations for the Ageas Bowl 
during the 2016 season; and 

(2) Note the successful expansion of the community programme at the Ageas 
Bowl.   

 

Summary 
 
This report reviews complaints and comments which have been received by departments 
within Eastleigh Borough Council for the 2016 season and refers to actions arising from 
the Ageas Bowl Liaison Panel meeting on 16 November 2016.  The report draws 
comparison with the previous eight years and provides updates which should address 
current residential concerns.  

Members are invited to note the progress of the community offer at the Ageas Bowl.  

Statutory Powers 
 
s.1 Localism  Act 2011 

 

Introduction 

1. This report provides a summary of complaints and comments received in 
respect of cricket matches and large scale events held at the Ageas Bowl 
during the 2016 season.  It provides an overview of concerns and, where 
possible, makes practical recommendations which should address identified 
problems.  The report summarises complaints and comments received by 
Borough Council staff. 

Complaints and Comments Analysis 

2. Complaints and comments received during the 2016 season are summarised 
below.  To enable comparison, a summary of statistics for the previous eight 

73

Agenda Item 8



 

seasons is included in the following table.   ‘On line’ reporting is an 
established practice through our Customer Services Centre (CSC). 

COMPLAINTS/COMMENTS 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Parking/Temporary Cones 2 9 4 13 5 17 17 7 7 

Bus shuttles/traffic management 9 0 1 2 4 3 2 4 7 

Noise/Concerts/Fireworks/Events 3 1 0 1 3 0 17 0 36 

Anti - Social Behaviour/Policing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 

Customer/Audience complaints 2 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 

Satisfaction/Compliments 1 0 0 0 1 8 6 2 4 

Other (MP Enquiry) 0 0 3 2 1 1 1 0 4 

TOTALS 17 11 8 18 15 29 43 14 58 

 

3. The majority of the complaints this season relate to the Rod Stewart concert 
and these were accepted and addressed by the Ageas Bowl’s management 
team. A number of meetings have taken place with the Borough Council, 
Safety Advisory Group and the Liaison Panel. 

4. The complaints that were received by the Borough Council’s CSC were 
relatively few. However we are aware that West End Parish Council, local 
councillors, the local MP and the Ageas Bowl received many complaints 
directly about the management of the concert. There was also extensive 
coverage in the Daily Echo. 

Parking/Temporary Coning Plans 

5. The main complaint about coning occurred on 2 June. A 20 over match was 
being staged and there was sparse coning in Western Road, the northern end 
of Southern Road and Telegraph Road. This was rectified and the resident 
contacted the Council to express his thanks. 

6. The Council and the managers of the Ageas Bowl meet every year to review 
the coning plan based on comments received. There was a request at the 
Liaison Panel that the coning on West End Road is reviewed and this will be 
actioned. 

Bus Shuttles and Traffic Management 

7. The majority of the complaints under this heading also arose from the Rod 
Stewart concert and are referred to under the concerts/fireworks’ section. 

8. The closure of the Bursledon Park and Ride site meant that other sites have 
had to be considered over the past year. This is an issue especially if the 
match is being held on a week day as this limits availability.  

9. The site at Wide Lane did suffer from traffic congestion around junction 5 of 
the M27 especially for the international match against Pakistan. 

10. A planning application to extend the on-site parking at the Ageas Bowl was 
submitted in June and this has been approved by the Council. However there 
has also been a public inquiry regarding the planning application to build 100 
dwellings on the Park and Stride site off Botley Road. The Planning Inspector 

74



 

has allowed the appeal to build on this site and it has been assumed that this 
will be lost as a Park and Stride site for the 2017 season onwards. The Ageas 
Bowl’s management team is seeking clarification about this at the time of 
writing. 

11. West End Parish Council received some comments from residents about the 
parking suspension in the layby on the High Street. This was authorised to 
enable improve transportation by buses due to the narrowness of the High 
Street. However the entire layby was cordoned off instead of 20 metres as 
requested. Once the correct closure had been implemented, this seemed to 
work well. The A27 Moorhill Road exit may be used by buses for major events 
next season. 

12. The increased use of buses from Hedge End Train Station to the Ageas Bowl 
for major events was a success and will be continued for the 2017 season. 

13. Additional directional signage on the walking/cycling route from the station to 
the Bowl was also installed. 

 Noise 

14. The Environmental Health Officer received 2 noise complaints directly. One 
related to the Rod Stewart concert and this was registered by a resident in 
Monarch Way. The other related to the Tattoo Festival in July and was raised 
by a resident in Kenilworth Gardens. As a result of these complaints, the 
Environmental Health Officer has met with the Ageas Bowl’s Operations 
Manager to amend the noise management procedures. 

Concerts/Fireworks 

14. James Cole, the Facilities Manager at the Ageas Bowl gave a comprehensive 
report at the Liaison Panel concerning the Rod Stewart concert. He stated that 
this had proved to be a challenging event and was the largest concert since 
Oasis in 2005 and it was accepted that there had been many changes in the 
intervening years to the Ageas Bowl site. 

15. Many people arrived on foot; many were dropped off at the stadium and the 
extent of this had not been foreseen. The Park & Ride facility at Wide Lane 
was underused as were the rail shuttles from Parkway. This led to major traffic 
congestion on site and in surrounding local roads. The main problems arose 
with the traffic marshals. The traffic marshals did not follow the traffic 
management plan and even failed to open the exit onto Moorhill Road. This 
stewarding company will not be used again for concerts at the Ageas Bowl. 

16. The alternative transport information was not distributed by the promoter and 
there were seating issues caused by ticketing problems. 

17. It was accepted that future plans had to reflect different assumptions as the 
cricket and concert audiences are different. Also it was agreed that Eastleigh 
Borough Council and West End Parish Council would have an early input into 
future management plans.  

75



 

18 The Fireworks event took place on Friday 4 November and one complaint was 
raised at the Liaison Panel meeting. This related to residents in the vicinity of 
Moorgreen Road who felt that the noise level had caused distress to 
neighbours especially those suffering from dementia. The Ageas Bowl 
managers replied that it is difficult to monitor but the complaint was forwarded 
to the Borough Council for review.  

Anti - Social Behaviour/Policing 

19. The local Police have not indicated that there were any ASB/offences 
recorded in the 2016 season .There were a few comments made by people 
attending the Rod Stewart concert that they had witnessed aggressive and 
drunken behaviour. However there are no Police reports on this matter. 

Hampshire Cricket in the Community  

20. The Hampshire Cricket Community Trust was officially launched on 6 
February 2013. 

21. The Trust is a charity known as Hampshire Cricket in the Community and has 
clear objectives which are particularly relevant for the local community. 

22. The first objective is to support our community to play cricket working with 
80 primary schools and 30 secondary schools; expanding disability cricket 
and women’s cricket with the successful Southern Vipers ladies team basing 
themselves at the Ageas Bowl. 

23. The second objective is to support our community to learn, largely through 
day trips undertaken by local schools such as Wildern, Wyvern, St. James’, 
Wellstead and Berrywood. Also a new BTEC programme for post 16 
education has been successful with 12 students enrolled. 

24.  The third objective is to support our community to live well with a road race 
and fun run becoming an annual fixture. Hedge End Running Club is located 
at the Ageas Bowl in addition to Poseidon and Choi Kwang Do as mentioned 
below. Also the charity Two Saints has worked in partnership with the Ageas 
Bowl culminating in the Big Get Together for the homeless or those living in 
sheltered accommodation. Work with those with dementia continues through 
the Cricket Memories Days and the Sport and Physical Activity Alliance’s 
Sports Awards were held for the first time at the Hilton hotel’s ballroom. 

25. The final objective is to support our community to raise funds with 
continued support for local charities and groups by way of raffle prizes. The 
Zip wire challenge raised over £15,000. Proceeds from the match day Golden 
Gamble and Hampshire Cricket Lotto also support the Trust’s initiatives and 
local cricket. 

Master Plan meetings 

26. The Chief Executives of Eastleigh Borough Council and the Ageas Bowl meet 
regularly with representatives of both bodies to discuss the master plan for the 
Ageas Bowl. 

76



 

27. Members will recall that significant investment was approved for Poseidon at 
the Ageas based upon the remarkable demand for this facility. The Club has 
only been open for 3 years and already it has over 700 members. Additionally 
10 coaches have been trained to take a variety of sessions ranging from 
women’s only training, taster sessions for local schools, joint sessions with the 
local police and social workers, Park sport junior sessions and Beginners Box 
Fit. Poseidon is also leading on a disability project for Sport England and there 
are plans to set up an academy for boxing. 

28. The latest addition to the sporting community offer at the Ageas Bowl is the 

martial arts organisation Choi Kwang Do. Located in the Richards Room, this 
organisation offers classes for those aged from 5 years old if accompanied. 
The emphasis is on building confidence, getting fit and having fun. Classes 
commenced in November and they are held Tuesday, Wednesday and 
Thursday evenings. 

 Future plans  

29. Further reports on the development of the Ageas Bowl’s community strategy 
and extended community use will be given to the HEWEB Local Area 
Committee and the Community Liaison Panel in 2017. 

Financial Implications 

30. There are no financial implications identified in this report. 

Risk Assessment 

31. There are no identifiable risks associated with recommendations made in this 
report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

32. There are no equality and diversity issues identified at this stage. 

Conclusion 

33. The Local Area Committee in partnership with the Ageas Bowl Liaison Panel 
will continue to monitor complaints and comments for the 2017 season. 
Further reports will be brought to the Liaison Panel and the Hedge End, West 
End and Botley Local Area Committee as the Trust’s strategy develops. 

 

77



 

JULIA BIRT 
Area Manager 

 
Date: 5 December 2016 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 
Report No: AC919JB 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

None 

78



 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 9 January 2017 

COMMUNITY GRANTS 2017/2018 

Report of the Area Manager on behalf of the Hedge End, West End 
and Botley Community Grants Panel 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that grants be approved as contained in Appendix 1 to this 
report. 
 

Summary 
 
The Grants Panel recommends that grants be allocated to local organisations operating in 
the Hedge End, West End and Botley local area for 2017/18.   

Statutory Powers 
 
S.1 Localism Act 2011 

 

Introduction 

1. Members will recall that this Committee has devolved responsibility for 
provision of revenue grants to local organisations. This year 35 different grant 
applications were received which was an increase of 7 compared with last 
year. The total requested was £14,530 which substantially exceeded the 
allocated budget of £6,980. 

2. This Committee’s Grants Panel comprising Councillors Clarke, Garton, Pretty 
and Hall convened to review the applications.   

The Panel’s decisions 

3. The Grants Panel gave careful consideration to of all the applications to 
ensure a broad distribution of funding was spread throughout the three local 
parished areas.  

4. The maximum grant was stated as £500. However, special consideration was 
given to the applications for the Young Carers’ trip to Fairthorne Manor and 
the Elders’ group and as a result, more than £500 was awarded. 

5. The Panel also considered the objectives of the organisations, the numbers 
attending and whether they were from the Hedge End, West End and Botley 
(HEWEB) area; the total costs of the project and whether funding was or could 
be sought from elsewhere. 

79

Agenda Item 9



 

6. A substantial number of applications were made by Wildern School (D.@rt 
Centre) and it was agreed that some of these could be recommended for 
funding from this Committee’s Wildern revenue budgets.  

7. It is therefore recommended that grants be approved as contained in 
Appendix 1 to this report. 

Financial Implications 

8. There are no ongoing revenue implications associated with this report as this 
Committee’s revenue budgets are sufficient to fund the Panel’s 
recommendations. 

Risk Assessment 

9. The recommendations made by the Grants Panel do not hold significant risks.  
All grant applications are subject to the completion of a detailed application 
form and submission of financial details.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

10. The report complies with our policy to ensure that the voluntary and 
community sectors are treated fairly and equitably.  Equality impact 
assessments on individual grants applications have not been made. 

Conclusion 

11. The recommendations made in this report complement the Council’s 
corporate priorities as well as this Committee’s local priorities.  Subject to the 
approval of this Committee, a grants presentation will take place before the 
local area committee meeting on 6 March 2017 to recognise and celebrate the 
breadth of community work being undertaken in the local area.   

JULIA BIRT 
 Area Manager 

 
Date: 13 December 2016 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.Birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
Report No: AC920JB 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report.  This list does not include any published works or 
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

35 grant applications received and held on file for further inspection.  Information 
available from Julia Birt, Area Manager. 

80



REF ORGANISATION PURPOSE
AMOUNT 

REQUESTED COMMENTS
AMOUNT 

PROPOSED (£)
1 St Lukes Church Coffee machine for project group £399.99 £400
2 Brendoncare Clubs - West End Club Fund running costs of West End Club £500

£400
3 Music Fun Factory Room hire £280 Apply for business start up 

grant
£100

4 West End Local History Soc Toward archival products £400 £250
5 Botley Minibus Hiring rates and insurance £250 £250
6 Hedge End Village Hall Management 

Committee Redecoration of kitchen & toilet facilities
£500 Recent capital funding 

received £150

7
Hedge End Breathe Easy & Friday 
Fitness Group

Hall hire, speakers,admin etc £500
£350

8 Alphabets Pre-School Resources, equipment £300 £150
9 Hedge End Horticultural Soc Shrubs, fertiliser, sacks £500 Refer to HETC £160

10 Hedge End Tuesday Retirement Club
Hall and bus hire £500

£300
11 National Pensioners Convention Room hire, PLI Insurance, newsletter £500 £258
12 Performing Arts Company Summer show at Berry Theatre £500 £200
13 Hilldene Community Assoc Replace lighting in entrance & corridor £250 £250
14 Eastleigh Boro & Romsey Mencap Artists materials £400 £400
15 The Box YC New freezer & cooker £500 £500
16 St James Church West End Lunch 

Club
Rent, transport & training

£500 £250
17 Wildern Opportunity Group Pakaway slide for children £500 Refer to HETC £200
18 Explorers Pre-School Equipment for sensory area £500 £500
19 Botley Twinning Assoc Public Liability Insurance £200 £100
20 Botley Music Festival Public Liability Insurance £500 £100
21 Botley in Bloom New shields and engraving £100 £100
22 Good Companions Social Club Subsidise outings £500 200
23 D@rt Centre Wildern Leisure Centre £500 £0
24 D@rt Centre Wildern Swimming £500 £0
25 D@rt Centre Men's group £120 £120
26 D@rt Centre Choral days £200 £0
27 D@rt Centre Fairtrade £200 £200
28 D@rt Centre Creative classical music £500 £0
29 D@rt Centre Swimming lessons £450 £0
30 D@rt Centre Young carers £500 £500
31 D@rt Centre Fairthorne Manor trip £580 £580
32 D@rt Centre New music equipment £350 £0
33 D@rt Centre Wraparound care £500 £0
34 D@rt Centre Elders Group £550 £550
35 Pavilion Pirates Pre-School Laptops £500 £250

HEWEB COMMUNITY GRANT AWARDS 2017/18                                         Appendix 1

Page 1 HEWEB Grants list 2017-18

81



TOTAL £14,529.99 £7,768

Page 2 HEWEB Grants list 2017-18

82



 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday 9 January 2017 

FUNDING FOR LOCAL PROJECTS  

Report of the Area Manager in consultation with the Clerk of Hedge 
End Town Council, the Head of Sport and Active Lifestyles, the 
Tree Officer and the Countryside Officer 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that this Committee:  

(1) Approves the renewal of the existing service level agreement for another 12 
months with funding of £5,500 for the services provided at the Teenage Drop-
In Centre; 

(2) Agrees to funding of £2,000 for the Park Sport summer holiday activities 
programme in 2017;  

(3) Approves funding of £3,250 from reserves for dropped kerbs and pathway 
works in Hilton Road; 

(4) Approves funding of £1,500 from reserves for tree works in Missenden Acres; 

(5) Approves funding of £1,300 from reserves for tree works at West End Road; 

(6) Notes the Chair’s approval of expenditure of £3,802 for 9 flower towers; 

(7) Approves the allocation and expenditure of the developer’s contribution of 
£11,516 for various works at Telegraph Woods; and 

(8) Approves expenditure of £10,000 in respect of habitat restoration work at 
Peewit Hill, Bursledon Common via a developer’s bond which may need to be 
underwritten by this Committee using its reserves.  

 
 

Summary 
 
The recommended funding will support projects which will meet identified local needs. The 
projects will also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. 
 
Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 Localism Act 2011 

83

Agenda Item 10



 

Teenage Drop-in Centre (TADIC)  

1. TADIC has had another successful year providing an invaluable service to 
local young people. Within the Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) 
area, weekly drop-in sessions are held at the Hedge End Medical Centre with 
additional provision being offered at Wildern School. As previously reported, 
TADIC is a charity and aims to provide the following for all young people: 

 A confidential and accessible service. 

 An opportunity to discuss all aspects of daily living. 

 The knowledge to empower them to make informed choices regarding 
their own physical, emotional and sexual health. 

 
2. The Centre is run by a dedicated team of specialists including, doctors, sexual 

health nurses and counsellors as well as an Operations Manager and 
administration team also consisting of volunteers.  

3. As agreed, a review of the Centre’s performance has been undertaken by the 
Area Manager based on an analysis of data supplied by TADIC’s Trustees 
and also by attending the Centre’s Annual General Meeting on 30 November 
2016. 

4. At the Annual General Meeting, it was reported that from April 2015 to March 
2016, 946 consultations were carried out which is in line with last year’s 
figures.  

5. The Trustees also provided information regarding the postcodes of those 
using TADIC’s services. This revealed that 81% of those attending 
consultations lived in the Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) area. 
The majority of clients live in Hedge End and a recent survey revealed that 
clients liked the location of the clinic, accessibility and the staff as they were 
acknowledged as “very kind and lovely people to talk to!” 

6. TADIC’s Operations Manager gave a presentation to the Hedge End, West 
End and Botley Youth Partnership on December. She informed the 
Partnership that TADIC and the Eastleigh Youth Counselling service had co-
existed for the last 5 years and therefore it had been decided that there would 
be a new umbrella charity known as the Young People’s Wellbeing Service. 
TADIC will continue to operate under its old name and there will be no 
changes in the operation of the service. 

7. The current service level agreement for TADIC is due to end on 31 March 
 2017. The service level agreement now operates on a 12 month basis. 

8.  Hedge End Town Councillors will be asked to approve a further 12 month 
service level agreement with associated funding of £5,500 and it is 
recommended that this Committee continues to match fund with the Town 
Council for April 2017 – March 2018 and that a review of this agreement is 
carried out after 6 months, i.e., October 2017. 

84



 

Park Sport 

9. The 2016 summer activities Park Sport programme for 8 – 16 year olds was 
 well attended in the Hedge End, West End and Botley area with 562 bookings 
 for 53 sessions ranging from cricket, volleyball, basketball, dance, boxercise, 
 tennis, handball, football and netball. Local area facilities were used and 
 included Botley Recreation Ground, Moorgreen Recreation Ground, The 
 D@rt Centre, Ageas Bowl, Woodhouse  Lane, and Greta Park. 

 

10. The programme also included 30 hours of free swimming at Wildern Leisure 
Centre and 485 attendances were registered, an increase of 66 on last year.  

11. The skate jam at Woodhouse Lane has become an extremely popular event. 
Last year’s attendance of 90 was considered to be very impressive but this 
year, 130 young people took part in the skateboarding and scooter sessions.  

12. Friday Night Football has really taken off at Botley Recreation Ground. Last 
year’s attendance figures were more than doubled this year with 260 
attendances registered. These are impressive figures and they reflect the on-
going success of this initiative within HEWEB.  

13.  One parent’s comments sum up the importance of the scheme. “Parksport is 
simply fantastic. Children are able to spend their summer trying new sport, 
making friends and all for virtually nothing. I cannot recommend Park Sport 
highly enough.” 

14. Given the demographics of the local area, it is important that a good range of 
activities is available and accessible for young people living in Hedge End, 
West End and Botley. Consequently it is proposed that this Committee 
contributes £2,000 from its local initiatives budget for Park Sport 2017. This is 
the same contribution as for 2016.  

 Hilton Road, Hedge End 

15. The local ward councillor received a request from a resident to improve the 
accessibility from her home in Lower Northam Road so that she could walk to 
local facilities especially the town centre. The resident in consultation with the 
Council’s Transport and Engineering section, dropped kerbs and a minor 
amendment to the pathway in Hilton Road have been recommended. 

16. Whilst this is a county council responsibility, the local area committee does 
have discretion to fund these schemes with the County’s approval. A similar 
scheme for Prestwood Road was agreed at the last local area committee. 

17.  The cost estimate for this project is £3,250 and it is recommended that this is 
funded from the Committee’s reserves. 

Missenden Acres, Hedge End 

18. The Council’s Tree Officer has conducted a site visit to inspect the willows on 
a narrow piece of land in between Missenden Acres and the adjacent public  

85



 

footpath. The characteristics of this species do not lend themselves to 
residential areas and they grow vigorously and tend to have stem failure 
leading to safety concerns. There are also brick walls nearby which will be 
affected by the tree roots in time. 

19. The Tree Officer’s recommendation is to remove the willows and he has 
received a cost estimate of £1,500. Members are advised that the 
Committee’s tree works budget is overspent for this year so Members are 
requested to approve funding for these works from the Committee’s reserves. 

West End Road 

20. The Tree Officer has advised that safety works are required to 3 trees which 
are adjacent to West End Road. The quotation for these works including traffic 
management is £1,300.Members are requested to approve that these safety 
works are funded from the reserves. 

 Flower towers 

21. Visitors and businesses within HEWEB have commented that they enjoy 
seeing the flower towers in the 3 village centres within the local area.  

22.  Members are asked to note the Chair’s approval of funding for 9 towers, 3 per 
centre at a cost of £3,802 and this can be funded from this Committee’s Town 
Centre budget. 

 Telegraph Woods 

23. The Countryside Officer has requested that some of the pathways are 
upgraded to improve the visitor experience at Telegraph Woods. He has initial 
estimates of £10,500 for these works. He has also recommended that the bin 
is upgraded at a cost of £316 to a dual component model which will enable 
litter and dog waste to be collected in one unit. Restoration to the heathland 
area is also required at a cost of £700. 

24.   Members are asked to approve these projects which can be funded from the 
following developer’s contribution:- 

 DC 19545/9 Queens College, Oxford - £11,516 

 Peewit Hill reptile receptor site/ St. John’s Road 

25. Peewit Hill, Bursledon Common is imminently due to be transferred under 
lease to Eastleigh Borough Council for the purposes of acting as a reptile 
receptor site for development at St. John’s Road Phase 1(completed) and 
Phase 2. 

26. The developer has been unable to carry out habitat restoration works to an 
acceptable standard prior to the transfer of the lease to the Council. Therefore 
a £10,000 bond will be given to the Council once the lease has been 
transferred. The bond will be used to undertake urgent habitat restoration 

86



 

works which must be undertaken prior to the bird nesting season (early 
March).  

27. Failure to carry out the restoration works before March, risks delays to the 
development of Phase 2 for St. John’s Road. 

28. If the lease transfer and bond are received in good time, Members are asked 
to approve the use of the £10,000 bond to make good the habitat works 
undertaken by the developer to an acceptable standard. 

29. Alternatively if the lease transfer happens in good time but there is a delay in 
the payment of the £10,000 invoice, then Members are asked to underwrite 
the £10,000 bond as soon as the lease is transferred. This will be paid back to 
the Committee once funds from the developer have been received. 

Financial Implications 

30. There is sufficient funding within HEWEB’s revenue and capital budgets to 
afford the proposed projects and grant funding.    

Risk Assessment 

31. This Committee is not directly responsible for the delivery aspects of the 
projects identified. However all contracts will be overseen by members of the 
Council’s staff in line with the Council’s health and safety policies. 

32. There is a small risk that the funds will not be forthcoming from the developer 
of St. John’s Road but this is outweighed by the risk that the phase 2 
development will be delayed if the translocation works are not carried out in a 
timely manner. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

33. The Council has a General duty under the Equality Act 2010 of ‘eliminating 
discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, and fostering good relations 
between different people’. An Equality Impact Assessment will be carried out 
where funding allocations for projects in this report, directly relate (either 
positively or negatively) to specific groups with ‘protected characteristics’. 

Conclusion 

34. All of the identified projects will benefit the community within the HEWEB area 
and therefore the proposed funding is recommended for approval. 

 

 

87



 

JULIA BIRT 
Area Manager – Hedge End, West End & Botley 

 
 

Date: 11 December 2016 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
Report No: AC921JB 
 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

Park Sport & Summer of Sport – Annual Report 2016 
 
Reports from the TADIC AGM –30 November 2016 

88


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Various Traffic Regulation Orders
	Appendix A various order
	Church Lane - Proposed Plan
	Cobbett Way - Proposed Plan 7
	Cudworth Mead - Proposed Plan 5
	Garratt Close - Proposed Plan 3
	Hobb Lane (1) - Proposed Plan 8
	Hobb Lane (2) - Proposed Plan 8
	Lower Northam Road HC01509-004
	Sheets and Views
	004


	Lower Northam Road Proposed Plan 12
	St John's Road - Proposed Plan 9
	St John's Road - Proposed Plan 9A
	Turnpike Way - Proposed Plan 10
	Upper St Helens Road-Lyons Place - Proposed Plan 6
	West Road - Proposed Plan 2
	West Road - Proposed Plan 2A
	Whites Way - Proposed Plan 11
	Winchester Street - Proposed Plan 1
	Winchester Street - Proposed Plan 1A

	8 Ageas Bowl Review April - September 2016
	9 Community Grants 2017/2018
	Copy of HEWEB GRANT REQUEST LIST 2017-18

	10 Funding for Local Projects

